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7 1
14 15 16 17 18
2019 12 31| 2020 12 31| 2021 12 31| 2022 12 31| 2023 12 31
@ 19,455,973 | 23,334,307 29,256,988 29,769,450 42,856,333
3,029.614| (3,632.335 | (4,554.289 | (4,634.061 (6,671.231
) )
® 0 0 0 0 0
0 © ) © ) © ) © )
© 17,037,083 | 43,891,244 | -25,503,132 64,593,275 |  -86,233,313
2,652.078 (6,832.330 | (-3,969.945 | (10,054.912 | (-13,423.509
) ) ) )
@ 12,006,477 | 31,794,767 6,291,635 70,884,911 |  -15,348,402
-1,882.998 | (4,949.332 (979.387 (11,034,300 | (-2,389.209
) ) ) )
© 2 2 2 2 2
16 12,096,477 | 31,794,767 6,291,635 70,884,911 | -15,348,402
-1,882.998 | (4,949.332 (979.387 | (11,034.300 | (-2,389.209
) ) ) )
@ 2,766,918,589 | 4,246,453,773 | 5,074,454,507 | 5,570,386,278 | 6,013,343,518
430,712.382| (661,024.227 | (789,914.961 | (867,114.180 | (936,067.119
) ) ) )
) 1 -6,048,239 15,897,384 3,145,818 35,442,456 7,674,201
6 -941.499 (2,474.666 (489.694 (5,517.150 (-1,194.604
1
) ) ) )
(i1 8,518,542 | 21,045,622 | -12,751,566 32,296,638 43,116,657
1,326.039 (3,416.165 | (-1,984.973 | (5,027.456 (6,711.754
) ) ) )
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(a1 0 0 0 0 0
0 o ) o ) o ) © )
)
8
-0.4372% -0.7487% 0.1240% 1.2725% -0.2552%
(m
( 9 140.8433% 138.0455% | -405.3498% 91.1242% 561.8390%

WisdomTree Management JerseyLimited)

WisdomTree Holdings (Jersey) Limited

WisdomTree Commodity
Securities Limited 14 ETF

Electra Target HoldCo
Electra
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1
(Commodity Index) 5
9 5
WisdomTree
WisdomTree
WisdomTree
WisdomTree
WisdomTree
2.
2024 1 13 2025
1
124,689,877 144,359,662 218,270,392
wTl 91,715 106,634 712,104 160,972
17,053
19,826 132,390 29,930
4,770
5,547 37,051 8,373
10,144 11,792 78,686 17,802
9,507 11,054 73,756 16,683
1,242,566 254,884
COMEX 16,676 142,688 29,267
31,379 268,532 55,074
18,308 156,375 32,072
4,878 41,748 8,565
72,328 809,460 126,946
24,009 268,729 42,140
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254,300
555,669 2,392,663
544,986 1,045,883 1,295,158
147,332 182,576
567,090
1,087,711 1,349,404
20,999 40,206 49,995
4,433 8,485
24,468 46,846 157,586
56,581 108,341 363,928
256,125 490,413 1,649,621
104,857
2024 1 13 2025 1
176,368,675 264,494,317 222,586,333 266,853,796 176,368,675 264,494,317
WTl 130,005 194,530 164,566 196,342 130,005 194,530
24,174 36,171 30,600 36,505 24,174 36,171
6,764 10,120 8,560 10,218 6,764 10,120
14,378 21,515 18,201 21,715 14,378 21,515
13,473 20,165 17,060 20,350 13,473 20,165
212,319 205,861 308,100 - 310,892 212,319 205,861 308,100
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24,368 23,635 35,368 - 35,698 24,368 23,635 35,368
45,859 44,481 66,557 - 67,180 45,859 44,481 66,557
26,811 25,910 38,828 - 39,182 26,811 25,910 38,828
7,130 6,913 10,349 - 10,444 7,130 6,913 10,349
105,703 102,524 153,408 129,784 154,839 105,703 102,524 153,408
35,090 34,033 50,926 43,083 51,397 35,090 34,033 50,926
86,343 83,750 125,313 108,255 - 86,343 83,750 125,313
812,299 786,965 1,177,798 995,667 - 812,299 786,965 1,177,798
176,368,675 176,368,675

797,690 - - 975,761 1,166,517 797,690 -
112,346 - - 137,453 164,321 112,346 -
829,649 - - 1,015,807 1,213,882 829,649 -
30,687 - - 37,674 44,952 30,687 -
6,479 - - 7,951 9,488 6,479 -
35,754 - 51,896 43,901 52,378 35,754 51,896
82,680 - 119,983 101,528 121,130 82,680 119,983
374,303 - 543,242 459,574 548,304 374,303 543,242
79,904 - 115,829 97,845 116,948 79,904 115,829
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A

WisdomTree Management
Jersey Limited

The Law
Debenture Trust Corporation
p.l.c.

R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited R&H

Computershare Investor

Services (Jersey) Limited
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Citigroup Global Markets
Limited
Merrill Lynch
International
MLI
MLI
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CGMH
MLI
Bank of
America Corporation
Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc. BAC
CGMH
CGMH
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2023 12 31

15,348,402
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2,389,

208,997

14
2019 12 31

15
2020 12 31

16
(2021 12 31 )

17
(2022 12 31 )

18
(2023 12 31 )

-12,096,477
(-1,882,998,092 )

31,794,767
(4,949,332,405 )

6,291,635
(979,387,362 )

70,884,911
(11,034,299,671 )

-15,348,402
(-2,389,208,997 )

2

2

2

2

2

2023 12 31

JE2 40X

31

100%
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A.
SM
2014 7 1 CME
2014 7 1 (Dow Jones)
SM
http://ww.bloombergindexes.com
1998 1991 1
3 SM
3 2006 7 1991
2006 2 2008 3
2011 12
2012 12 2010 6
1991 1991

100

10SCO 19
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RIS
B.
LME
27
2a
INYMEX(  4) Henry Hub Natural Gas (NG) 3 5 7 9 11 !
1
WTI INYMEX(  4) Light, Sweet Crude Oil (CL) 3 5 7 9 11
ICEC 3) Brent Crude Oil (B) 3 5 7 o 11 L
1
INYMEX(  4) RBOB Gasoline (RB) 3 5 7 9 11
. . 1
INYMEX(  4) Heating Oil (HO) 3 5 7 9 11
1ICE( 3) Low Sulphur Gas 0il (QS) 3 > U 9 11 1
LME High Grade Primary Aluminium (AL) |3 5 7 9 11 L
COMEX(  4) Copper (HG) 3 5 7 9 12
LME Special High Grade Zinc (2ZN) 3 5 7 11 1
LVE Primary Nickel (NI) 3 5 7 0 11 1
COMEX(  4) Gold (GC) 2 4 6 8 12
COMEX(  4) Silver (SI) 3 5 7 9 12
CVME(  2) Live Cattle (LC) 2 4 6 8 10 12
CVE( 2) Lean Hogs (LH) 2 4 6 7 8 10 12
CBOT(  2) Soft Wheat (W) 3 5 7 9 12
KCBT Kansas Wheat (KW) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Corn (C) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Soybeans (S) 3 5 7 11 1
INYBOT World Sugar No. 11 (SB) 3 5 7 10
NYBOT Cotton (CT) 3 5 7 12
INYBOT Coffee (KC) 3 5 7 9 12
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CBOT( 2) Soybean Oil (BO) 3 5 7 12 1
CBOT(  2) Soybean Meal (SM) 3 5 7 12 1
INYBOT Cocoa (CC) 3 5 7 9 12
LME Refined Standard Lead (LL) 3 5 7 9 11 1
INYMEX(  4) Platinum (PL) 4 7 10 1
LME Refined Tin (LT) 3 5 7 9 11
Q)
( 2) Chicago Board of Trade Chicago Mercantile Exchange) 2007

( 3) ICE Futures US

( b New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc 2008 CME
3 SM S
3 SM 3
3 SM
SM 2b
1
2020 6
12 S 2020 9
3 SM 2020 9
SM 2020 11
2b i

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
WTI 3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
2 4 4 6 6 8 8 10 10 12 12 2
2 4 4 6 6 7 8 10 10 12 12 2
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 11 11 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 12 12 12 12 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
2 4 4 6 6 8 8 12 12 12 12 2
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 3
4 4 4 7 7 7 10 10 10 1 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 10 10 10 3 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 12 12 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 3
3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 12 12 12 3
3 3 5 5 7 7 12 12 12 12 1 1
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http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gh/pricing.aspx.

CME

UBS CME
CME CME 4
0.00000005 7
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SM

G, ¢, ox Mda,)x PFa,v /7 10

@G,v t i
1G.v

M@, v

PFG.o

https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-
gb/pricing

M@, v

MG, vy M, t-1) 1 CAQu.,v

M.t

M@, t-1)

CA(1,1v)

100 1

25/222



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

https://www.wisdomtree.eu/ en-gh/ pricingdated

@
©)

@)
()

https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-gh/pricing
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0.00000005
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2006 1 17
WisdomTree
10 1
10 1
2007 9 7
sn WisdomTree 10
10
CME
sm
l.
1
7

3.22006637

65.76379322

271222



25.1056608

2,392,663

0.00000033

0.80092514

SM

RIS
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6.8364772

254,300

0.00000684

1.73851615

SM
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389 1,600

6,700

250,000,000

150,000,000

100

389 1,600

250 0,110
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2
70 10,896 5,500
250,000,000
CIP
7,500,000 11
2013 1
7,500,000 11 6,700
CIP 100
RIS
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30
.
2 RIS
20
CME
)
)
2.5
60 2
RIS

()
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2.5 2.5

ML 10
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/
MLI 70 7,000,000,000
10,896 5,500
2006 9
€Y
rolling
8 10
10 11
roll yield
backwardation
10
11
contango
10 11
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/
()
3
S 3
SM
3 S 3
3 SM
/
3 S
3 S
©
CME UBS AG
CME
30
(d) /
UBS

Supervisory Committee
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/

MLI BAC BAC

MLI
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UBS

UBS

DJ-
UBSCI UBS

UBS

MLI
MLI

()
)
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MLI MLI MLI

MLI

MLI

UBS

UBS UBS
BAC

(B)
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1
daily price
fluctuation limit
limit price

MLI

UBS MLCI

©
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EU
EU (2014/59/EU)(  BRAD ) EU
( )
BRRD
BRAD
EU BRRD 2018
MLI  CGML BRRD BRRD
( )
BRRD
BRRD
MLI MLI COML COML
( )
BRRD (
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SRR

GSIB

I1SDA
1SDA

@

(b)

©

@

SRR

SRR

SRR

(b)

SRR

2019 1

®
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( SRR ) SRR
( GSIB )
) @
( )
@
SRR
(
SRR
2019 7 1
SRR
2019 6 28
SRR
( )
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30

gross up)

30

UBS MLI BAC

Exchange Traded
Commodities; ETCs
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25%

@)

(b)

2013 2 14 EU

FTT
FTT

FTT
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ucrTs
UCITS
1985 12 20 85 611 EEC
UCITS

UCITS

UCITS UCITS

@)
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32% 68% 2022 45 55

2023 12 31 6,040,635,291
6,220,815,842

http://www._wisdomtree.eu/pricing

https://www.wisdomtree.eu/-/media/eu-media-Tiles/key-documents/prospectus/etf-
securities/prospectus---etfs-commodity-securities-limited-(classic-,-a-,-longer-
dated) .pdf

A+ 2022 A+ 2023 9 15
AA 2022 AA 2023 9 15
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ManJer

ManJer

ManJer
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CREST



«

2023 12 31

1
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ManJer

IFRS 13

15
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-
-,
-,

IFRS 7

(rf

2
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12 31
2023 2022

(5,997,681,648)  (933,629,114) (5,443,574,868)  (847,374,082)

- - (12,285,749) (1,912,461)

5,982,333,244 931,239,904 5,526,745,526 860,320,842
5,982,333,244 931,239,904 5,514,459,777 858,408,381
3
5
1 2
2023 12 31 0 0 2022
12,285,749 (1,912,461 ) 1 2 2021 1
7,006,966 1,090,739 2022 3,466,895
539,674 2 1
0.08%
500 97,075
500

97,075
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0.35

0.49%

0.49%

RIS
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0.05%

30

0.45%

0.45%
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2024 6 14
-0. 0001171%
-0. 0001130%
-0. 0000785%
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15.315% S%
20%

b)
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2016 1 1
2015 12 31
2016 1 1
2016 1 1 2016 12 31
2024
2018 4 1 31%
35

@

(b)
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(©)

(@

©)

2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1

2009 12 1
2009 12 1

2009 12 1
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2009 1 1

WisdomTree Jerseylssuer Tax
Information https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-gh/resource-
library/prospectus-and-regulatory-reports#tab-2A942D42-5AA1-4008-9080-3C2DADB050A7

)

@

Q)

20%
2006 S.1. No.2006/964

2009 9 1
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)
)
)
OECD
FATCA
OECD
FATCA
CRS 2017 9
CRS
CRS
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2023 12 31

% (2

5,082,333, 244 931,240 99..48%
6,013,343,518 936,067 100.00%
6,028,691 ,920 938,456 100.26%
(15,348,402) (2,389) (0.26)%
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2023 12 31
%

10,480,764 10.81 1,682 | 115,779,222 18,023 3.450%

it 81,129,344 9.01 1,402 | 733,003,623 114,103 21.83%

81,372 49.22 7,661 4,057,098 632 0.12%

49,088,704 3.17 493 | 154,939,467 24,119 4.61%

36,830,420 34.64 5,303 | 1,278,752,182 199,057 38.08%

6,661,474 15.26 2,376 | 100,821,409 15,694 3.00%

3,845,490 25.94 4,038 99,966,762 15,561 2.98%

933,921 23.98 3,732 22,457,329 3,496 0.67%

349,086 31.01 4,827 10,986,309 1,710 0.33%

8,287,364 10.70 1,666 88,777,384 13,820 2.64%

12,472,230 3.61 562 45,904,762 7,146 1.37%

31,132,090 14.44 2,248 | 449,750,809 70,010 13.39%

36,577,694 6.35 988 | 231,345,648 36,012 6.89%

5,057,502 4.23 658 21,656,447 3,371 0.64%

2023 4 2024 3
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WisdomTree
1
15 51,483,153.55 8,014 0.01 2
(2020 12 31 ) ,483,153. ’ '
16 46,338,829.86 7,213 . . 0.02 3
(2021 12 31 ) »338,829. ; '
17 69,063,856.05 10,751 0.02 3
(202 12 31 -063,856. ’ '
2023 4 145,429 ,940.19 22,638 . . 0.01 2
5 133,288,186.18 20,748 - - 0.01 2
6 164,531,602.56 25,612 - , 0.01 2
7 165,188,346 46 25,714 , , 0.01 2
8 161,493,767.20 25,139 , . 0.01 2
9 147,232,009.58 22,919 . . 0.01 2
10 159,827 ,757.49 24,880 . . 0.01 2
11 133,733,474.78 20,818 - - 0.01 2
12 353,131,717.36 54,970 - - 10.81 | 1,683
2024 1 319,807,442.68 49,783 , , 9.79 | 1,524
2 284,994 ,427.19 44,364 , . 8.72| 1,357
3 251,104 ,040.91 39,088 . . 7.68| 1,196
( ) 2023 12 1 1,783
2023 12 6 ToSTNeT
100 1 2023 12 6 1

WisdomTree WTI
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1

15

2020 12 31 |1,429,305,548.60 222,493 4.33 674
)

16

2021 12 31 1,576,648,060.82 245,429 - - 7.15] 1,113
)

17
(2022 12 31 852,304,914.88 132,674 9.25| 1,440
2023 4 648,923,887.58 101,015 - - 8.89 | 1,384
5 567,991,795.79 88,416 - - 8.01 | 1,247
6 572,393,649.96 89,102 - - 8.37 | 1,303
7 662,378,883.84 103,109 - - 9.64 | 1,501
8 612,489,764.87 95,343 - - 9.91 | 1,543
9 569,744,217.72 88,689 - - 10.62 | 1,653
10 627,312,539.71 97,651 - - 9.93 | 1,546
11 713,987,096.90 111,143 - - 9.50 | 1,479
12 730,777,417.61 113,756 - - 9.01| 1,403
2024 1 798,643,630.84 124,321 - - 9.48 | 1,476
2 832,756,524 .95 129,631 - - 9.71| 1,512
3 760,184,284 .28 118,334 - - 10.43 | 1,624
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 5.869,534.43 914 18.94 | 2,948
)
16
2021 12 31| 6,112,087.26 951 . - 31.80 | 4,950
)
17 6,381,748.92 993 46.51 | 7,240
(2022 12 31 ,381,748. : ’

2023 4 6,519,714.88 1,015 _ . 45.70 | 7,114
5 5.296,212.14 824 . - 45.01 | 7,006
6 4,964,524.12 773 - . 48.83 | 7.601
7 7.791,066.35 1,213 - . 57.60 | 8,966
8 8.595,837.06 1,338 - . 56.56 | 8,804
9 6,674,368.47 1,039 - . 54.90 | 8,546
10 5.623,951.67 875 . . 51.56 | 8,026
11 4,789,780.15 746 . - 50.92 | 7,926
12 4,004,807.74 623 - . 49.22 | 7.662

2024 1 4,451,468.30 693 - . 51.84 | 8,070
2 5.828,180.72 907 - . 54.89 | 8,544
3 7.,045,684.23 1,097 - . 58.29 | 9,074
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31 | 369,856,208.67 57,574 25.92 | 4,035
16 )
2021 12 31| 52,654,447.00 8,196 - - 3.90| 607
)
17 141,777,850.58 22,070 3.26| 507
(2022 12 31 1T, ’
2023 4 163,305,860. 75 25,421 - - 3.19 | 497
5 167,661,962.34 26,099 - - 3.05| 475
6 152,235,632.44 23,698 _ § 2.90| 451
7 165,644,478.39 25,785 _ _ 3.07| 478
8 165,814,797.35 25,812 _ § 2.95| 459
9 179,049,346.67 27,872 _ _ 3.16 | 492
10 159,266,732.27 24,792 - - 3.01| 469
11 150, 253,896. 11 23,389 - - 2.93| 456
12 155,623,861.47 24,225 _ § 3.17| 493
2024 1 142,523,499.29 22,186 _ _ 3.03| 472
2 130,063, 618. 24 20,246 _ § 2.95| 459
3 127,889,664.49 19,908 _ _ 3.00| 481
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 338,663,887.58 52,718 - - 31.46 | 4,897
16 )
2021 12 31| 535,479,323.88 83,355 - _ 39.55 | 6,157
)
17 495,520,927.79 77,135 _ _ 33.64 | 5,237
(2022 12 31 520, : :
2023 4 1,569,902,051.17 244,379 - - 34.47 | 5,366
5 1,453,420,522.56 226,247 _ § 32.31| 5,030
6 1,206,964,711.58 187,882 _ _ 33.42 | 5,202
7 1,348,250,891.07 209,875 _ § 35.75 | 5,565
8 1,255,895,460.77 195,499 _ _ 33.93 | 5,282
9 965,594,900.26 150,309 - - 33.29 | 5,182
10 1,171,915,969.25 182,426 - - 32.62 | 5,078
11 1,251,169,938.24 194,763 _ § 34.17 | 5,319
12 1,275,968,642.38 198,624 _ _ 34.64 | 5,392
2024 1 1,456,028, 004.61 226,653 _ § 34.91 | 5,434
2 1,524,217,785.89 237,267 _ _ 34.30 | 5,339
3 1,690,827,890.21 263,203 - - 35.85 | 5,581
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 459,116,443.33 71,468 § - 15.62 | 2,431
16 )
2021 12 31| 205,137,570.76 31,933 - _ 19.35 | 3,012
)
17 208,706,983.74 32,488 _ _ 27.93 | 4,348
(2022 12 31 706, : :
2023 4 164,457,914.24 25,600 - - 22.45 | 3,495
5 137,279,440.17 21,370 _ § 19.03 | 2,962
6 136,041,358.85 21,177 _ _ 18.99 | 2,956
7 146,443,352.87 22,796 _ § 20.62 | 3,210
8 134,003,220.57 20,874 _ _ 18.75 | 2,919
9 123,026,030.61 19,151 - - 17.24 | 2,684
10 108,253,815.67 16,851 - - 16.69 | 2,598
11 99,098, 046.92 15,426 _ § 15.32 | 2,385
12 101,678,155.15 15,828 _ _ 15.26 | 2,375
2024 1 99,791,020.53 15,534 _ § 14.91 | 2,321
2 114,589,503. 12 17,838 _ _ 16.39 | 2,551
3 114,494,393.49 17,823 - - 15.33 | 2,386
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 55,584,195.01 8,653 . . 0.72 112
)
16
2021 12 31| 57.472,786.81 8,947 . . 0.81 126
)
17 103,835,910.20 16,164 . . 0.78 121
(2022 12 31 .835,910. ’ :
2023 4 88,039,331.76 13,705 - - 0.61 95
5 86,440,894.73 13,456 . . 0.58 90
6 94,910,758.86 14,774 . . 0.62 97
7 106,125 ,876.25 16,520 . . 0.64 100
8 97,581,898.73 15,190 . . 0.56 87
9 91,533,663 10 14,249 . . 0.50 78
10 95,515,388.23 14,868 - - 0.52 81
11 101,098,166.70 15,737 . . 0.54 84
12 151,910,775.80 23,647 . . 25.94 | 4,038
2024 1 144,496,480.96 22,493 . . 24.67 | 3,840
2 139,678,770.58 21,743 . . 23.85 | 3,713
3 136,279,352.79 21,214 . . 23.27 | 3,622
( )2023 12 1 46
2023 12 6 ToSTNeT 100
1 2023 12 6 1

WisdomTree
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1

15

2020 12 31 |31,939,043.74 4,972 . . 0.84| 131
)

16

2021 12 31 | 26,406,986.75 4,111 . - 1.11 173
)
17 30,416,875.62 4,735 1.35 210
(2022 12 31 ,416,875. ' '
2023 4 23,173,231.74 3,607 . . 1.22 190
5 29,776,805.45 4,635 . . 1.24| 193
6 25.963,524.77 4,042 , . 1.17 182
7 28.492,542.17 4,435 . . 1.21 188
8 28,035,298 61 4,364 . . 1.12 174
9 29,259,428.25 4,555 , - 1.13 176
10 31,002,976.59 4,826 . . 1.13 176
11 30,538,324.23 4,754 . . 1.11 173
12 39,123,115.48 6,090 , . 23.08 | 3,733
2024 1 37,344,899.47 5,813 . . 22.89 | 3,563
2 34,925,977.83 5,437 . . 21.41| 3,333
3 36,069,191.37 5,615 , - 2211 | 3,442
( )2023 12 1 22
2023 12 6 ToSTNeT 100
1 2023 12 6 1

WisdomTree
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1

15
2020 12 31 |11,084,714.41 1,726 22.75 | 3,541

)

16

2021 12 31 |14,184,726.27 2,208 _ - 24.38 | 3,795
)

(20%2 L 3 | 17.227.567.94 2,682 30.91 | 4,812
2023 4 13,873,609.40 2,160 - - 20.70 | 4,623
5 12,216,573.56 1,902 _ , 27.28 | 4,247
6 14,444,704..62 2,249 - - 32.32 | 5,031
7 13,353,432.31 2,079 - - 32.15 | 5,005
8 13,778,713.68 2,145 - - 33.17 | 5,163
9 12,536,281.91 1,951 _ - 31.00 | 4,826
10 12,525,212.57 1,950 - - 31.51 | 4,905
11 11,883,542.72 1,850 _ - 32.41| 5,045
12 10,823,743.90 1,685 - - 31.01| 4,827
2024 1 10,216,305.41 1,590 - - 20.30 | 4,561
2 9,563,050.97 1,489 - - 27.30 | 4,250
3 10,873,605.85 1,693 _ - 28.62 | 4,455
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WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 23,004,894.85 3,581 2.17| 338
)
16
2021 12 31| 151,331,369.47 23,557 . . 10.20 | 1,588
)
17 131,082,956.15 20,405 11.69 | 1,820
(2022 12 31 ,082,956. ’ ' ’
2023 4 118,535,163.44 18,452 . . 10.90 | 1,697
5 106,399,732.67 16,563 . . 10.28 | 1,600
6 107,810,935.34 16,782 , . 10.66 | 1,659
7 123,457,199.48 19,218 . . 11.33 | 1,764
8 119,369, 065.74 18,582 . . 11.24 | 1,750
9 118,323,076.81 18,419 - - 11.18 | 1,740
10 104,499,073.61 16,267 . . 11.15 | 1,736
11 99,241,806.79 15,448 . . 11.00 | 1,712
12 88,668,889.22 13,803 , . 10.70 | 1,666
2024 1 88,239,848.13 13,736 . . 10.70 | 1,666
2 85,556,636 64 13,318 . . 10.53 | 1,639
3 88,778,898.17 13,820 - - 10.88 | 1,694
WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 47,638,407.14 7,416 3.53| 549
)
16
2021 12 31| 75,787,859.46 11,798 . . 3.29| 512
)
17 70,224,245 64 10,931 4.49 699
(2022 12 31 1224,245. ' '
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2023 4 132,470,060.49 20,621 - § 3.62| 564
5 56,829,333.55 8,846 - - 3.30| 514
6 57,820,075.55 9,001 - - 3.56 | 554
7 65,294,969 60 10,164 - - 4.02| 626
8 68,655,925.28 10,687 - § 4.12| 64l
9 76,063,169.63 11,840 - - 4.34| 676
10 76,864,350.25 11,965 - § 4.15| 646
11 62,132,257.03 9,672 - - 3.82| 595
12 44,991,345.93 7,004 - - 3.61| 562
2024 1 46,174 ,505.36 7,188 - - 3.67| 571
2 46,746,528.72 7,277 - § 3.65| 568
3 47,579,660.93 7,406 - - 3.75| 584
WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31| 32,195,032.00 5,012 2.16| 336
16 )
2021 12 31| 680,230,680.99 105,888 - - 16.86 | 2,625
)
17 611,423,256.86 95,177 16.17 | 2,517
(2022 12 31 423, : :
2023 4 589,350, 150.68 91,741 - - 15.16 | 2,360
5 468,481,670.29 72,926 - - 13.86 | 2,158
6 458,012,600.61 71,297 § - 14.01| 2,181
7 488,802,434.38 76,089 - - 14.96 | 2,329
8 449,756,411.98 70,011 - - 14.25 | 2,218
9 455,203,481.21 70,859 - - 14.46 | 2,251
10 437,514,174.20 68,106 - - 13.85 | 2,156
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11 449,162,182.27 69,919 - § 13.90 | 2,164
12 449,592,745.28 69,986 - - 14.44 | 2,248
2024 1 443,381,275.54 69,019 - - 14.15 | 2,203
2 443,708,477.61 69,070 - - 14.06 | 2,189
3 426,602,014.82 66,407 - § 14.30 | 2,226
WisdomTree
1
15
2020 12 31 | 247,360,516.08 38,505 8.14 | 1,267
16 )
2021 12 31| 230,006,874.56 35,804 - - 5.90 | 918
)
17 324,325,705.15 50,486 6.73 | 1,048
(2022 12 31 -325, : :
2023 4 271,242,340.85 42,223 - - 6.59 | 1,026
5 256,352,491.01 39,905 - - 6.31| 982
6 288,919,546.12 44,975 § - 6.61| 1,029
7 302,523,736.79 47,092 - - 6.77 | 1,054
8 304,697,383.25 47,431 - § 6.68 | 1,040
9 287,443,029.11 44,745 - - 6.40 | 996
10 279,483,386.59 43,506 - - 6.55 | 1,020
11 281,780,855.04 43,863 - - 6.66 | 1,037
12 232,228,907.86 36,150 § - 6.35| 988
2024 1 207,642,234.34 35,436 - - 6.27| 976
2 215,260,831.55 33,509 - - 6.00| 934
3 210,185,385.97 32,719 - - 6.14 | 956

WisdomTree
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1
15
2020 12 31| 111,755,009.46 17,396 13.07 2,035
)
16
2021 12 31 33,403,535.02 5,200 - - 4.21 655
)
17
(2022 12 31 31,793,938.86 4,949 4.92 766
2023 4 25,084 ,066.06 3,905 - - 4.46 694
5 24,033,983.53 3,741 - - 4.32 672
6 25,192,357.28 3,922 - - 4 .58 713
7 25,073,897.44 3,903 - - 4.65 724
8 24,166,227.04 3,762 - - 4.44 691
9 23,293,936.55 3,626 - - 4.22 657
10 23,132,236.41 3,601 - - 4.25 662
11 22,618,331.00 3,621 - 4.30 669
12 21,371,901.42 3,327 - 4.23 658
2024 1 20,219,193.77 3,147 - 4.02 626
2 19,056,383.04 2,966 - 3.79 590
3 19,521,619.06 3,039 - 3.88 604
WisdomTree WisdomTree WTI WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree 2006 9 27 2006 11 1
2007 2 15 NYSE 2006 12 15
2007 4 20 2010 3 19
2023 1 1 2023 12 31
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WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 37.89
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -42 .56
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -41.11
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 17.51
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 34.04
100x (a b)
a
b
WisdomTree WTI
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 33.06
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -51.91
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -16.03
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 29.33
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -2.65
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 43.00
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -31.63
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 23.83
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 46.26
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 5.82
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 4.78
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 2.79
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 40.76
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -16.46
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -2.81
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 6.16
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2020 1 1 2020 12 31 22.02
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 57.68
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -14.93
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 2.97
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 31.20
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.40
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 58.66
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 44 .31
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -43.35
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 8.23
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -98.83
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 29.13
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -4.24
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 70.14
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 -6.19
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 11.74
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 30.27
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 21.00
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 76.47
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 1.59
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 30.76
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 41.16
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 26.79
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 0.31
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 7.00
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -2.33
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2021 1 1 2021 12 31 25.27
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 14.65
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -8.51
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 12.02
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -41.55
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -9.61
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 36.36
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -19.64
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 5.72
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.21
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 50.90
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -4.10
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -10.67
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 0.59
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.10
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 43.29
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 14.04
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -5.64
WisdomTree
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 2.07
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 18.03
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 35.70
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 17.03
2023 1 1 2023 12 31 -14.16
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CREST
1 30
1974
the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
ERISA 1986 United States Internal Revenue Code of

1986

qualified purchaser
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ERISA 3 3 ERISA 4 1 B
4975
29 2510.3-101 ERISA 3 42
ERISA
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1991

2006 9 15

26

2012 3

2008 1
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Companies Jersey Law 1991

2005 8 16
2006 9 15
90959
Steven Ross —
ManJer
2001 2006
Cl LLP
2017 1
ManJer
2018 1
2017 12
2007 4 2011 3
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2006 6 15
2019 9

CEO

2017 12
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2007
1982
N
Christopher Foulds —
JIM ManJer
Deloitte LLP
(FCA)
Deloitte LLP
ManJer
2020 3 R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited
CoinShares (Jersey) Limited
Bryan Governey —
2014 9 WisdomTree 2016 11
WisdomTree
ManJer
2012

2014 2010 2012
2010

(G

1988
Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1947
Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Law 2

Jersey Financial Services Commission
15
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Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1988 3

50

@)

8A

8 1
8 B
certificate
8 2 1
7
8A
8B
8B 7
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)
©
)
1991
1998
1996
®) 8A
™
@ 13

8B 10
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8B 7

8B 13

AIF

2012 —
Collective Investment Funds (Certified Funds — Prospectuses) (Jersey) Order 2012

1958 Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order
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1988

14

21
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CME

2.5

MLI

(

20

)

14

)

2017 10 24

R

60
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plc
plc

10

14
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WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited

2023 12 31 2,250,000 436,835,250

WisdomTree Foreign Exchange Limited
WisdomTree Metal Securities Limited
Gold Bullion Securities Limited
WisdomTree Hedged Metal Securities Limited
WisdomTree Hedged
Commodity Securities Limited
WisdomTree Issuer X Limited

QY

24
14
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2023 12 31
JE4 8PW 300,000 100%
31
Bryan Governey —
1 2
Peter Jiemba —
1 2
Steven Ross —
1 2
Hilary Jones —
1993 15
Northern Bank 1999
R&H Fund Servies
Jersey Limited 2009 2019
1993 1999

Lloyds Private Bank and Trust Company
Barclays Private Bank and Trust Company
relationship manager
40

2020 4
ManJer

2024 3 31
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2005 8 16 (15,348,402)
2,389
2
2000 7 1 540,995
84
2011 11 11 (757,794)
118
2011 6 6 (1,139,596)
177
WisdomTree 2007 2 22 3,430,562
534
2004 3 17 (6,497,499)
1,011
2019 9 17 4,430,168
690
1 2024 3 31
2
a. The Law Debenture
Trust Corporation p.l.c.
5,000,000 970,745,000 2023 12 31

100
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R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited
2,425,000 470,811,325 2023 12 31
1998 11
29
Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited
25,000 4,853,725 2023 12 31
JE1 1ES
a. The Law Debenture
Trust Corporation p.l.c.
b. R&H Fund

Services (Jersey) Limited

Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited
2012 12 14
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2022 2023 12
31 2022 2023 12 31
131
a. 23 103
b.
5 4 25 3
2024 4 25 7

1 155.665 1 194149
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12 31
2023 2022

7 5,982,333,244 931,239,904 5,526,745,526 860,320,842
7 18,861,634 2,936,096 23,143,956 3,602,704
8 8,025,335 1,249,264 15,924,251 2,478,849
6 4,123,305 641,854 4,572,545 711,785
6,013,343,518 936,067,119 5,570,386,278 867,114,180

8 5,997,681,648 933,629,114 5,455,860,617 849,286,543
8 18,861,634 2,936,096 23,143,956 3,602,704
7 8,025,335 1,249,264 15,924,251 2,478,849
9 4,123,303 641,854 4,572,543 711,785
6,028,691,920 938,456,328 5,499,501,367 856,079,880

10 2 0 2 0
(15,348,404) (2,389,209) 70,884,909 11,034,299
(15,348,402) (2,389,209) 70,884,911 11,034,300
6,013,343,518 936,067,119 5,570,386,278 867,114,180

2024 4 24
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12 31

2023 2022
42,856,333 6,671,231 29,769,450 4,634,061
(42,856,333) (6,671,231) (29,769,450) (4,634,061)
(426,576,116) (66,402,971) 856,233,519 133,285,591

23

15

40

340,342,803 52,979,462 (791,640,243) (123,230,678)
(86,233,313) (13,423,509) 64,593,276 10,054,912
GAAP
)/
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2022 1 1

2022 12 31

3

2023 1 1

2023 12 31

3
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15

15

- - 6,291,633 979,387 6,291,635 979,387
64,593,276 10,054,912 - - 64,593,276 10,054,912
(64,593,276) (10,054,912) 64,593,276 10,054,912 - -
- - 70,884,909 11,034,299 70,884,911 11,034,300
- - 70,884,909 11,034,299 70,884,911 11,034,300

(86,233,313)

86,233,313

(13,423,509)

13,423,509

(86,233,313)

(13,423,509)

(86,233,313)

(13,423,509)

(15,348,404)

(2,389,209)

(15,348,402)

(2,389,209)

23

40
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)4

ManJer

ManJer
3
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12 31
2023 2022

(86,233,313) (13,423,509) 64,593,276 10,054,912

426,576,116 66,402,971 (856,233,519)  (133,285,501)

(340,342,803) (52,979,462) 791,640,243 123,230,678

ManJer

ManJer
ManJer

ManJer
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Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road, St. Helier,
Jersey, JE4 8PW

15
12
15

@

Q@
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ManJer
) ManJer

ManJer
ManJer

1ASB
IFRS 1ASB

2023 12 31

IFRS 12

IFRS

15
GAAP
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ManJer
ManJer
IFRS
2025 4 30
(a
IAS 8
IAS 12
IFRS 17
b IFRS
IFRS
IAS 1 (2024 1 1 )
IAS 7 IFRS 7 (2024 1 1
)
IFRS 16 (2025 1 1

IAS 21 (2025 1 1 )
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i)
i)
IFRS 9
IFRS 9

iii)

L.P. L.P.

AG

( )

IFRS 13
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ManJer
0.49
0.35
0.98%
0.05

ManJer

2022 6 30
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IFRS 8

CODM
CODM

CODM

2
10
CODM
2 1
5
3.
12 31
2023 2022
33,813,883 5,263,638 25,658,170 3,994,079
3,293,695 512,713 2,425,255 377,527
5,748,755 894,880 1,686,025 262,455
42,856,333 6,671,231 29,769,450 4,634,061
ManJer (42,856,333) (6,671,231) (29,769,450) (4,634,061)
(42,856,333) (6,671,231) (29,769,450) (4,634,061)
51,761 2022 43,079 ManJer
4.

2022
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5.
2

2023 12 31
29,955,083 3,858,800 33,813,883
3,096,817 196,877 3,293,694
4,205,381 1,543,375 5,748,756
37,257,281 5,599,052 42,856,333
(37,257,281) (5,599,052) (42,856,333)

2023 12 31
4,662,958 600,680 5,263,638
482,066 30,647 512,713
654,631 240,249 894,880
5,799,655 871,576 6,671,231
(5,799, 655) (871,576) (6,671,231)

2022 12 31
21,040,820 4,617,350 25,658,170
2,189,690 235,565 2,425,255
1,252,710 433,315 1,686,025
24,483,220 5,286,230 29,769,450
(24,483,220) (5,286,230) (29,769,450)

2022 12 31
3,275,319 718,760 3,994,079
340,858 36,669 377,527
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195,003 67,452 262,455
3,811,180 822,881 4,634,061
(3,811,180) (822,881) (4,634,061)

7 8
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6.
12 31
2023 2022
3,592,829 559,278 3,827,326 595,781
530,474 82,576 745,217 116,004
2 0 2 0
4,123,305 641,854 4,572,545 711,785
12
1.
2023 12 31
(376,707,457) (58,640,166)  5,635,183,849 877,200,894
(49,868, 659) (7,762,805) 347,149,395 54,039,011
(426,576,116) (66,402,971)  5,982,333,244 931,239,904
2022 12 31
712,282,182 110,877,406  5,078,313,786 790,515,715
143,951,337 22,408,185 448,431,740 69,805,127
856,233,519 133,285,591  5,526,745,526 860,320,842
2023 12 31
18,861,634 2022 1 23,143,956
8,025,335 2022 : 15,924,251
12 31
2023 2022
5,526,745,526 860,320,842  5,026,725,552 782,485,233
7,291,003,423 1,134,968,058  8,032,128,256 1,250,321,245
(6,371,822,011) (991,869,673)  (8,360,258,376)  (1,301,399,620)

(37,107,578) (5,776,351) (28,083, 425) (4,371,606)
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(426,576,116) (66,402,971) 856,233,519 133,285,591
5,982,333, 244 931,239,904  5,526,745,526 860,320,842
8.
NAV
IFRS 13
2023 12 31
299,653,457 46,645,555  5,648,811,981 879,322,317
40,689,346 6,333,907 348,869, 667 54,306,797
340,342,803 52,979,462 5,997,681,648 933,629,114
2022 12 31
(654,512,154)  (101,884,634) 5,014,887,918 780,642,528
(137,128,089) (21,346,044) 440,972,699 68,644,015
(791,640,243)  (123,230,678) 5,455,860,617 849,286,543
2023 12 31
376,707,457 58,640,166  5,635,183,849 877,200,894
49,868,659 7,762,805 347,149,395 54,039,011
426,576,116 66,402,971 5,982,333,244 931,239,904

2022 12 31
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(712,282,182) (110,877,406) 5,078,313,786 790,515,715

(143,951,337) (22,408,185) 448,431,740 69,805,127

(856,233,519)  (133,285,501) 5,526,745,526 860,320,842

GAAP 15
2023 12 31

8,025,335 2022 1 15,924,251

18,861,634 2022  : 23,143,956
12 31
2023 2022

5,455,860, 617 849,286,543  5,020,433,919 781,505,846

7,291,093,423 1,134,968,058  8,032,128,256 1,250,321,245
(6,371,822,011) (991,869,673)  (8,360,258,376)  (1,301,399,620)
(37,107,578) (5,776,351) (28,083,425) (4,371,606)

(340, 342,803) (52,979,462) 791,640,243 123,230,678

( ) 5,997,681, 648 933,629,114  5,455,860,617 849,286,543
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ManJder
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12 31
2023 2022
4,123,303 641,854 4,572,543 711,785
ManJer 12
12 31
2023 2022
2 0 2 0
1 1
HoldCo
12 31
2023 2022
42,856,333 6,671,231 29,769,450 4,634,061
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ManJer
12 31
2023 2022
ManJer 4,123,303 641,854 4,572,543 711,785
2023 12 31 ManJer 2 2022 2
( R&H
) R&H ManJer
R&H
R&H R&H
R&H
R&H ManJer ManJer R&H
1,221,529 2022 214,233 291,402 2022 0

(a
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32 68 2022 45 55

2023 12 31 6,040,635,291

6,220,815,842

http://www.wisdomtree._eu/pricing

AAA A-
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«

AA 2022

ManJer

AA

A+

2022

CREST

A+
2023 9 15
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2023 9 15

ManJer
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ManJer
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ManJer

IFRS 13

15
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NAV
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12 31

3,466,895

13.

IFRS

14.

15.
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12 31
2023 2022

(5,997,681,648)  (933,629,114) (5,443,574,868) (847,374,082)

- - (12,285,749)  (1,912,461)

5,982,333,244 931,239,904 5,526,745,526 860,320,842
5,982,333,244 931,239,904 5,514,459,777 858,408,381
3
5
1 2 2023
1 2 0 2022 12,285,749
2 1 7,006,966 2022
HoldCo
HoldCo
2023 12 31

GAAP
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12 31
2023 2022

(426,576,116) (66,402,971) 856,233,519 133,285,591
340,342,803 52,979,462 (791,640, 244) (123,230,679)

(86, 233,313) (13,423,509) 64,593,275 10,054,912
GAAP

12 31
2023 2022

42,856,333 6,671,231 29,769,450 4,634,061
(42,856,333) (6.671,231) (29,769,450) (4,634,061)
(426,576,116) (66,402,971) 856,233,519 133,285,591
340,342,803 52,979,462 (791,640,243)  (123,230,678)
(86,233,313) (13,423,509) 64,593,276 10,054,912
86,233,313 13,423,509 (64,593,276) (10,054,912)
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4
6,291,633 979,387 6,291,635 979,387 2 0
- - - 64,593,276 10,054,912 64,593,276 10,054,912
- 64,593,276 10,054,912 - - - -
- - - - (64,593,276)  (10,054,912)
70,884,909 11,034,299 70,884,911 11,034,300 2 0
70,884,909 11,034,299 70,884,911 11,034,300 2 0
- (86,233,313) (13,423,509) - - (86,233,313) (13,423,509) (86,233,313) (13,423,500)
- (86,233,313)  (13,423,509) - - - -
- - - - 86,233,313 13,423,509
(15,348,404)  (2,389,209) (15,348,402)  (2,389,209) 2 0
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WisdomTree Commeodity Securities Limited %

Statement of Financial Position WISDOMTREF

As at 31 December

2023 2022

Notes uso uso
Assels
Commodity Confracts T 5082 333,244 5.526,745 526
Amounts Receivable on Commaodity Contracts
Awaliting Settlement 7 18,861 634 23143956
Amounts Receivable on Commodity Securities
Awaiting Settlement 8 8,025,335 15,924,251
Trade and Other Receivables ] 4,123,305 4 572 545
Total Assets 6,013,343,518 5,570,386,278
Liabilities
Commodity Securities a8 5,997 681 648 9455860617
Amounts Payable on Commodity Securities Awaiting
Seftlement 8 18,861 634 23,143,956
Amounts Payable on Commodity Confracts Awaiting
Settlement 7 8025335 15,924,251
Trade and Other Payables 4 4,123,303 4572543
Total Liabilities 6,028,691,920 5,499,501, 367
Equity
Stated Capital 10 2 2
Revaluation Reserve {15,348 404) 70,884,909
Total Equity {13,348 402) 70,884,911
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,013,343 518 5,570,366,278

The assets and liabilities in the above Statement of Financial Position are presented in order of liquidity from
most to least liquid.

The financial statements on pages 19 to 40 were approved and authonsed for issue by the board of directors
and signed on its behalf on 24 April 2024,

Christopher Foulds
Director

The notes on pages 23 to 40 form part of these financial statements

- 20 - www. wisdomtree.eu
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited “ﬁ%’

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income NMISDOMTRES

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

Notes ush usD

Income i 42 856,333 28,765,450

Expenses 3 {42,856,333) (20,768 450)

Result Before Fair Value Movements 3 - -
Change in Contractual and Fair Value of Commodity

Contracts T (426576.116) 856,233,519

Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities g 340,342 803 (791 640, 243)

{Loss) / Profit for the Year'? (86,233,313 54,503,276

The directors consider the Company's activities as continuing.

' A nonestabulory and non-GAAP Stalement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income reflecting adusiments
repregenting the movemant in the diference batween the value of the Commodity Contracls and the price of Commadity
Securilles & sef oul in nole 15.

2 There are no items of Other Comprehensive income, therefore the (Loss) / Profit for the Year also represented the Tolal
Comprehenshve Income for the Year.

The notes on pages 23 to 40 form part of these financial statements

- 19 - wwrw. wisdomtree.eu
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited %
Statement of Cash Flows WISsDOMIREF
Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
uso uso
(Loss) / Profit for the Year (86,233,313) 64,593,276

Non-cash Reconciling ltems

Change in Contractual and Fair Value of Commadity

Contracts 426,576,116 (856,233519)
Change in Fair Value of Commedity Securities (H0342.803) 791,640,243

Cash Generated from Operating Activities - -
et Movement in Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the
Year - -

Met Movement in Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year - -

Commedity Securiies are issued through a direct transfer of cash from the Authorsed Pamticipants to the
Commadity Contract Counterparties or redeemed by the direct transfer of cash by the Commoedity Contract
Counterparties to the Authorised Participants. As such the Company is not a party to any cash transactions.
The creations and redemptions of Commodity Securiies and creations and cancellations of Commodity
Contracts, which are non-cash transactions for the Company, are disclosed in notes 7 and 8 respectively, in
the reconciliation of epening to closing Commodity Securities and Commodity Contracts,

The Company has entered into a service agreement with WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited ("ManJer”
or the "Manager”), whereby ManJer is respensible for supphying or procuring the supply of all management
and administration services required by the Company (ncluding marketing), as well as the payment of costs
relating to the listing and issue of Commodity Securities, In retum for these services, the Company has an
obligation to remunerate ManJer with an amount equal to the aggregate of the management fee, licence
allowance and the creation and redemption fees (the “ManJer Fee®). The management fee and licence
allowance are transferred directly o ManJer by the Commodity Contract Counterparties under the terms of the
Commodity Contracts. Creation and redemption fees are included and setied between the Authorised
Participants and the Commodity Contract Counterparties as part of each creation or redemption, and are
transferred directly to ManJer by the Commodity Contract Counterparties on a monthly basis, Accordingly,
there are no cash flows through the Company. These fees are disclosed in note 3,

The notes on pages 23 to 40 form part of these financial statements

-2 - www. wisdomtree.eu
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited m

Hotes to the Financlal Statements WIsDomMIR

1. General Information

WisdomTree Commaodity Securities Limited (the “Company’} is a company incorporated and domiciled in
Jersey. The address of the registered office is Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road, St. Helier, Jersey, JE4 BPW.

The Company’s principal activity is the issue and listing of commodity securities ("Commodity Securities™). The
Company's portfolio of Commodity Securnties includes classic, longer dated, short and leveraged Commodity
Securities. Commodity Secunties are undated secured limited recourse financial instruments designedto track
the price of commuodity fulures, and give investors an expasure similar to that which could be achieved by
managing a fulty cash-collateralised position in near-term futures contracts, less applicable fees. However,
unlike managing a futures position, Commodity Securties involve no need to roll from one futures contract to
another, no margin calls. and ne other brokerage or other costsin helding or rolling futures contracts (although
security holders incur costs in holding Commodity Securities). No trading or management of fulures contracts
is required by the Company. Commadty Secunties allow investors to buy and sell their interest through the
trading of a securty on the London Stock Exchange and any other exchange to which that securnty may be
admitted to trading from time to time.

Commadity Securities are backed by commodity contracts ("Commadity Contracts”) with terms comesponding
to the terms of Commodity Securities. Each class of Commedity Security is issued under Bmited recourse
arrangements whereby the holders have recourse only to the relevant Commodity Contracts held to support
the Commodity Securnties and not to the Commadity Contracts of any other class of Commodily Security or Lo
the Company. The Company does not make gains from trading in the undertying Commodity Contracts, As
a result, (and with the exception of the impact of management fees and Bcence allewance), from a commerzial
perspective gains and losses in respect of Commedity Contracts will always be offset by a corresponding loss
or gain on the Commodity Securities and therefore commercially the Company does not retain any net gains
or losses or net risk exposures. However, the difference in valuation between Commedity Contracts and
Commadity Securities creates a mis-match between values reported within these financial statements, This
difference in valuation would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and
cancellation of the comesponding Commodity Contracts. Further details are disclosed within the Accounting
Policies and in note 15, with additional information regarding the risks of the Company disclosed in note 12,
Furthermore, the Company presents an adjusted Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income and an adjusted Statement of Changes in Equity in note 15 of the financial statements to reflect the
economic results of the Company through the reversal of the difference in valuation bebween Commodity
Contracts and Commodity Securiies given the gain or loss would be reversed on a subseguent redemplion of
the Commodity Securities and transfer of the corresponding Commodity Centracts, and therefore will not be
realised.

Exchange-traded products are not typically actvely managed, are significantly lower in cost when compared
to actively managed mutual funds and are easily accessible to investors. Notrading or management of futures
conlracts is required of the Company because the Company has entered into arrangements 1o acquire an
equivalent asset exposure represented by the Commodity Securities from third parties which fully hedges the
exposure of the Company.

The Company is entitled to;

(1) @ management fee and a licence allowance which are calculated by appihving a fived percentage to
the Contractual Value of Commaodity Securiies in lssue on a daily basis (the “Management Fee and
Licence Allowance™);, and

(2) apply creaticn and redemption fees on the issue and redemption of the Commaodity Securities,

Mo creation or redemption fees are payable to the Company when investors trade in the Commeodity Securities
on a listed market such as the London Stock Exchange.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited ("ManJer”
or the “Manager’), whereby ManJer is responsible for supplying or procuning the supply of all management
and administration senvices required by the Company fincluding marketing), as well as the payment of costs
relating to the Esting and issuance of Commodity Securities. In return for these semvices the Company has an
obligation to remunerate ManJer with an amount equal to the management fee, licence allowance and the
creation and redemption fees eamed (the “ManJer Fee”). As a result, the Company recognises a result before
fair value movements of nil for each period.
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited m

Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WiIsDOMITR

2. Accounting Policies
The materal atcounting poficies of the Company are described below.
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS5" as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASE™), and interpretations issued by
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiftes of the IASBE. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain Snancial assets and financial liabidties
held at fair value through profit or loss.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has concluded specfically that cmate change, including physical and
transition risks, does not have a matenal impact on the recognition and separate measurement considerations
of the assets and liabilities in these financial statements as at 31 December 2023,

This conclusion is based on the fact that assets are reported at fair value under IFRS, are short dated, and as
set out in note 12 are categorised as level 2 due to the use of observable, verifiable inputs, mcluding use of
third party information scurces within the agreed pricing formulae (set out in the Prospectus). The liabilties
are valued utising listed market prices at the period end. These observable inputs and market prices will
reflect wader market sentiment, which inherently includes market perspectives relating to the impact of climate
change.

Material Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The presentation of financial statements in confomity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reperted amounts of
assets and liabilties. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and sther factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant Estimates

The directors do not consider that any significant estimates have been applied in the preparation of these
financial statements.

Significant Judgements

The key accounting judgement required to prepare these financial statements is in respect of the presentation
of non-statutory and non-GAAP adjustments to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Cther Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity, as disclosed in note 15,

Going Concern

The nature of the Company's business dictates that the cutstanding Commaodty Securities may be redeemed
at any time by Authorised Fadicipants and in cerain circumstances by individual holders and also, in certain
cireurmstances, may be compulsenly redeemed by the Company. As the redemption of Commodity Securties
will atways coincide with the cancellation of an equal amount of Commaoadity Contracts, liquidity risk is mitigated
through this process which is considered to minimize exposure to Bquidity risk. Al ether expenses of the
Company are met by ManJer. The directors clesely monitor the financial position and performance of Man.ler,
its assets under management, and therefore its related revenue streams, in respect of fulfiling the obligations
under the services agreement. The net reported position on balance sheet, including in instances where a
deficit is reported, is not considered to impact the going concern position of the Company as this position
results solely due to the unrealised gains or losses on Commedity Contracts and Commodity Securities due
to the accounting measurement basis applied in accordance with IFRS. As Commeodity Contracts are held to
support Commoodity Securties, any deficit or surplus reported on unrealised positions would be reversed on a
subsequent redemption of the Commedity Secuntes and the related transfer of Commeodity Contracts.
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited m

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WiIsDOMITR

2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Going Concern (continued)

A reported deficit is not considered indicative of any issues relating to selvency of the Company and the
directors are satisfied that any obligations arising in respect of the Commodity Securities can be managed in
accordance with the terms of the applicable prospectus. The directors consider the operations of the Company
to be ongoing, with a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence untd at least 30 April 2025 (being the period of assessment), and accordingly these
financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Accounting Standards
{a} Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted in the year:

The following standards that have been revised, issued and became effective but are not considerad
applicable to the Company:

+ Amendments to I1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors

+  Amendments to 145 12 Deferred Tax

+ [FRS 17 Insurance Confracts

There were no other new standards, amendments and interpretations adopted in the current year that
resulted in a significant effect on these financial statements.

(k) New and revised IFRS5s in lssue but not yet effective:

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
vet effective:

+ Amendments to LAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual pericds beginning
on or atter 1 January 2024)

+ Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to |AS T and IFRS 7 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024)

+ Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Lmbilty in Sale and Leaseback {effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2025)

* Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to 145 21 (effective for annual perods beginning on or after
1 January 2025)

The directors do not expect the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations that
are in issue but not yet effective will have a materal impact on the financial statements of the Company
in future perigds,

Commodity Securties and Commaodity Contracts

il Issue and Redemplion

Each time a Commodity Security is issued or redeemed by the Company a comesponding number and
value of Commodity Contracts are created or cancelled with Citigroup Global Markets Limited
{"Citigroup”) and Mermill Lynch Intemational ("Merrill Lynch™) {collectively the “Commodity Contract
Counterparties™). The Commodity Contracts represent the financial assets of the Company and the
Commodity Securities give rise to the financial liabiliies. Upon initial recognition, the fair value is
recorded using the price calculated based on the formula set out in the Prospectus, referred to as the
“Confractual Value” (see below)

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised and de-recognised on the transaction (trade) date.
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited m

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WiIsDOMITR

2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Commodity Securties and Commaodity Contracts {(continued)

i) Classification at fakr valve through Profit or Loss
Each Commodity Security and Commodity Contract comprises a financial instrument whose redemgption
or cancellation price is linked to the performance of the relevant commodity index adjusted by the
applicable fees and expenses,

The Commodity Contracts held are classified as financial assets at fair value through proft or loss under
IFRS 9 and the Commodity Securities are classified as financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss under IFRS 9 due to an embedded derivative. This also significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measurng assets or
liabilities, or recognising the gains and losses on them, on different bases,

il Pricing

The Commodity Confracts are priced by reference to the value of the commodity indices caloulated and
published by Bloomberg L.P. or Bloomberg Finance LP. (together “Bloomberg™) and Solactive AG
("Solactive’) together with a multiplier calculated by the Company and agreed with the Commodity
Contract Counterparties. The multiplier takes into account the daily accrual of the Management Fee
and Licence Allswance and swap spréad as well as the capital adjustment component of the Commadity
Secunty, and is the same across all Commedity Securities of the same type (i.e. all classic Commodity
Securities use the same multiplier). This price (the Contractual Value calculated based on the formula
set outin the Prospectus) is considered to be the fair value of the Commodity Contracts.

IFR3 13 requires the Company to identify the principal market and to utifise the available price within
that principal market. The directors consider the stock exchanges where the Commodity Securities are
listed to be the principal market and as a result the fair value of the Commodity Secunties is the on-
exchange price as quoted on the stock exchange demonstrating active trading with the highest trading
volume on each day that the price is obtained. The Commodity Securities are priced using the latest
traded price on (or before) the Statement of Financial Pesition date.

Consequently, a difference anses between the value of Commodity Contracts (held te support the
Commodity Securities) and Commodity Securities (at market value) presented in the Statement of
Financial Position. This difference is reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities
and cancellation of the cormespending Commodity Confracts.

Commodity Contracts and Securities Awaiting Settlement

The issue and redemption of Commodity Secunties, and the creation or cancellation of Commodity Contracts,
is accounted for on the transaction date. The transaction will not settie until bwo days after the transaction
date. Where lransactions are awaiting settlement at the year end, the value of the Commodity Contracts and
the Commodity Securities due to be settied is separately disclosed within the relevant assets and liabilities on
the Statement of Financial Position. The fair value of these receivables and payables is considered equivalent
to thedr carrying value.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Cther financial assets and liabilties are non-dervative financial assets and liabilities including trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables with a fived payment amount and are not queted in an active market.
After initial measurement the other financial assets and liabilties are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any allowance for expected credit losses (in respect of financial assets
only). The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of
allocating interest over the relevant peniod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated fulure cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral pant of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carmying amount on initial recognition. Impairment losses, including
reversals of impairment lasses and impairment gains, are recorded through profit or loss,
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited m

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WiIsDOMITR

2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Reserves

A revaluation reserve and a retained earnings reserve are maintained within equity. All profit or loss is taken
to the retained earmnings reserve at the end of the accounting period to which it relates and the gain or loss
relating to the mis-match of accounting values is transferred to the revaluation reserve, which the directors
have deemed to be non-distributable, as the balance relates to unrealised gains and losses on Commadity
Contracts (held to support the Commodity Securities) and Commodity Securities, which will be reversed on a
subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and the related cancellation of Commaodity Contracts and
will therefore not be realised.

Income

The Company derives ils income over time (in respect of management fees), and at a point in time {in respect
of ereation and redemption fees) as follows:

i)  Management Feas and Licence Allowance

Management Fees and Licence Allowance are calculated by applying a fied percentage to the

Contractual Value of Commodity Securities in issue in accordance with the terms of the secunties issued:

+ classic and longer dated Commedity Securities have a management fee rate of 0.45% per annum,
with the excepton of WisdomTree Carbon Securities which has management fee rate of 0.35% per
annum,

+ short and leveraged Commodity Securities have a management fee rate of 0.98% per annum; and

+ all Commodity Securiies are subject to the licence allowance of 0.05% per annum.

The Management Fees and Licence Allowance are accrued and recognised on a daily basis and are
invoiced on a monthly basis and sefiled directly bebwsen Manler and the Commodity Coniract
Counterparties.

il Creation and Redemption Fees
Fees for the issue and redemplion of Commodity Securities are recognised at the fair value of the
consideration expected to be received, on the date on which the transaction becomes legally binding.
Creation and redemgption fees are included as part of each creation or redemption and seltfed between
the Authorised Paricipants and the Commodty Contract Counterparties, and transferred directy to
Mander by the Commodity Contract Counterparties on a monthhy basis.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the cumency in which the majority of the Commodity
Securities issued by the Company are denominated (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial
statements, the results and financial pesition of the Company are expressed in United States Dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Company, and the presentational currency of the financial statements.

Transactions in foreign curencies are initially recorded atthe spotrate at the date ofthe transaction, Monetary
assets and liabiities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end date are translated at rates ruling at
that date. Prior to 30 June 2022 creation and redemption fees were transiated at the average rate for the
maonth in which they are ncumed. The resulting differences are accounted for through profit or loss,

Segmental Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing produdts or
services (business segment), or in providing products and services within a paricular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different fram those of other segments.
IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of intemal reports about components of the
Company that are regulardy reviewed by the Chief Cperating Decision Maker ("CODM) in order to allocate
resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The CODM has been determined as the board
of directors.
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited W

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WiIsDOMITR

2. Accounting Policies (continued)
Segmental Reporting {continued)

Whilst the Company has a number of different Commeodity Securities in issue, the financlal information
reviewed by the CODM is not segregated by those different Commodity Jecurities, but is segregated between
classic and lenger dated Commodity Securities and short and leveraged Commeodity Securities and therefore
the board of directors have concluded that these two components meet the criteria of operating segments.
Furthermare, marketing ofthe Commodity Securities is undertaken on a centralised basis and the terms ofthe
Commadity Securities of any class rank pan passu in all respects irrespective of stock exchange listing. In
addstion, the Company has no single major customer from which greater than 10% of income is generated.

Az a result, the CODM determined that the Company is operating two segment or product group, classic and
longer dated Commeodity Securties and short and leveraged Commodity Secunties, and one geographical
segment which is Europe. Therefore the Company discloses its results on an equivalent form on its operations
for each of the Company's business segments only, in note 5.

3 Result Before Fair Value Movements

Result Before Fair Value Movements for the yvear comprised:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

uso uso
Management Fees 33,813 883 25 658 170
Licence Allowance 3,203 605 2425255
Creation and Redemption Fees 5,748.755 1,686,025
Total Income 42,856,333 209,769,450
Man.Jer Fees (42,856,333) {28,769450)
Total Operating Expenses (42,856,333) {28,769,450)

Result Before Fair Value Movements - -

Audit Fees for the year of GBP 51,761 will be met by ManJer (2022: GBF 43,078).

4. Taxation

The Company s subject to Jersey Income Tax. Dunng the year the Jersey Income Tax rate applicable to the
Company s zero percent (2022: zero percent).

5. Segmental Reporting

The Compamy has two operating segments; classic & longer dated and short & leveraged Commodity
Securities in issue. The Company eams income from each of these sources.

Far the year ended Classic & Short &
3 December 2023 Longer Dated Leveraged Total
uso uso uso
Management Fees 29,955 083 3.858.800 43,813 883
Licence Allowance 3086817 196,877 3,203 634
Creation and Redemption Fees 4,205,381 1543375 5 748,756
Total Income 37,257 281 55890652 42 856,333
Total Operating Expenses (27,257 281) (5,580,082) {42 858,333)

Segmental Result - - -
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5. Segmental Reporting (continued)

For the year ended Classic & Short &
31 December 2022: Longer Dated Leveraged Total
usD uso uso
Management Fees 21,040,820 4617 350 25,858,170
Licence Allowance 2180600 235565 2425255
Creation and Redemption Fees 1,252 710 433,315 1,686,025
Total Ingome 24,483,220 5,286,230 28,769,450
Total Operating Expenses (24.483,220) 15, 286,230) {28,769 450)

Segmental Result

Additional information relating to the assets and liabilities associated with these Commodity Securities is

dizelosed in notes 7 and B.

B. Trade and Other Receivables

Management Fee and Licence Allowance
Creation and Redemption Fees
Receivable from Related Party

As at 31 December
2023 2022
usp uspD
3592828 3827328
530474 745,217
2 2
4,123,305 4,572,545

The fair value of these receivables is equal to the camying value. The Trade and Cther Receivables are due

to be recovered within 12 months of the year end.

7. Commodity Contracts

31 December 2023

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Contracts
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts

Total Commaodity Contracts

31 December 2022

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Contracts
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts

Total Commeodity Contracts

- 29 -

Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usp usp
(376,707 457) 5635183849
(49,868 659) 347 140,395
{426,576,116) 5,982,333,244

Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
UsD usp
712282182 5078,313,786
143,951 337 448,431,740
£56,233,518 5,526,745 526
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i. Commodity Contracts [continued)

As at 31 December 2023, there were certain Commodity Contracts awaiting setfiement in respect of the
creation or redemption of Securities with transaction dates before the year end and setilernent dates in the

following year:

# The amount receivable on Commaodity Conftracts awaiting setlement is USD 18,861 634 (2022: USD

23.143.956),

+« The amount payable on Commodity Confracts awaiting settlierment is USD 8,025 335 (2022 U3D

15,0824 251).

The below reconciliation of changes in the Commadity Contracts includes anly non-cash changes.

Opening Commodity Contracts
Additions

Disposals
Management Fee and Licence Allowance
Change in Fair Value

Closing Commadity Conlracts

3. Commaodity Securities

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

usp usoD
5,526,745,526 5,026,725,552
7.201 083423 8.032128 256
{B.371,822 011) (8,3680,258,378)
(37,107 578) {28 083 425)
{426,576, 118) 856,233 519
5082333244 5,526,745 526

Whilst the Commaodity Secunties are quoted on the cpen market, the Company’s ultimate Hability relates to its
contractual abligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securibes at set prices on each trading day. These
prices are based on agreed formulae, and are equal to the published net asset values ("NAVT) of each class
of Commodity Security. Therefore, the actual contractual issue and redemption of Commodity Securities occur
at a price that comesponds to the fair value of the Commodity Contracts. As a result, the Company has no net
exposure to gams or losses on the Commaodity Securities and Commodity Confracts.

The Coempany measures the Commodity Securities at their fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 rather than
al the Contractual Value (as described in the Prospectus). The fair value is the price quoted on stock
exchanges or cther markets where the Commodity Securities are listed or traded,

The fair values and changes thereof dunng the year based on prices available on the open market as

recognised in the financial statements are:
31 Decembrer 2023

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities
Short & Leveraged Commaodity Securiies

Total Commuodity Securities

31 December 2022

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities
Short & Leveraged Commedity Securities

Total Commedity Securities

1421222

Change in
Fair Val ue Fair Value
usD usp
290,653 457 5.648.811,881
40,600,345 348,860 657
340,342,803 5,997 681,648

Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usp UsD
(654.512,154) 5,014 887 918
{137,128.089) 440,872 698
{791,640,243) 5,455,860,617
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3. Commodity Securities (continued)

The Contractual Values and changes thereof during the year based on the contractual settlement values are:

Contractual
Value
uso

5.635,183,848
347,148,285

5.882,333,204

Contractual
Value
uso

5078 313,786
448,431,740

31 December 2023 Change in
Contractual

Value

usp

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities 376,707 457
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securiies 49 868,650
Total Commaodity Securities 426,576,116
31 December 2022 Change in
Contractual

Value

uso

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities (712,282182)
Short & Leveraged Commeadity Securities {143,951,337)
Total Commaodity Securities {656, 233.,599)

5,526,745,526

The gain or loss on the difference between the value of the Commodity Contracts and the fair value of
Commodity Securities would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and
cancellation of the comesponding Commodity Contracts. Refer to note 15 for the non-statutory and nen-GAAP

adjustments which reflect the results of this reversal,

As at 31 December 2023, there were certain Commaodity Securities awaiting setlement in respect of creations
or redemptions with transaction dates before the yvear end and settlement dates in the following year:

+  The amount receivable on Commodity Securities awaiting setilernent is USD 8,025,335 (2022; USD

15,924 251).

+ The amount payable on Commedity Securibies awaiting setifernent is USD 18,881 634 (2022 USD

23,143 856),

The below reconciliaton of changes in the Commodity Securities, being liabiies arising from financing

activities, includes onhy non-cash changes.

Year ended 31 December

2022
usp

5,020,433,919
8,032,128,256
(8,360,258,376)
(28,083 425)
791 540,243

2023

usDh
Opening Commuodity Securities 5,455, 860,617
Securities Created 7.291,083.423
Securities Redeemed {6,371 822,011}
Management Fee and Licence Allowance (37,107 .578)
Change in fair value (340,342, 803)
Closing Commodity Secunties at Fair Value 5,997,681,648

5 455 860,617
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8. Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December

2023 2022
uso usb
ManJer Fees Payable 4,123,303 4,572,543

The fair value of these payables is equal to the camying value. The ManJer Fee Payable is due to be settled
within 12 months of the year end.

10.  Stated Capital

As at 31 December

2023 2022
uso uso

2 Shares of Nil Par Value, Issued at GBP 1 Each and Fully
Paid 2 2

The Company can issue an unlimited capital of nil par value shares in accordance with its Memarandum of
Association.

Al Shares issued by the Company camy one vote per Share without restriction and camry the right to dividends.
All Shares are held by WisdomTree Holdings Jersey Limited ("HoldCa'),

11. Related Party Disclosures

Entities and individuals which have significant influence over the Company, either through ownership or by
virtue of being a director ofthe Company are considered to be related parties. In addition, entities with common
ownership to the Company and entities with commen directors are also considered to be refated parties.
Feas charged by ManJer during the year:

Year ended 31 December

2023 2022

usp usp

ManJer Fees 42,856,333 29,769,450

The following balances were due fo ManJder af yearend.
As at 31 December

2023 2022

usD usp

ManJer Fees Payable 4,123,303 4,572,543

At 31 December 2023, USD 2 is receivable from ManJer (2022: USD 2

Mo director has a service contract with the Company. The directors of the Company who are employees within
the WisdomTree, Inc group do not receive separate remuneration in their capacity as directors of the Company.
The directors of the Company who are employees of R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited ("REH" or the
“Administrator”) do not receive separate remuneration in their capacity as directors of the Company, however
R&H receives a fee fram ManJer which includes services in respect of the Company, including for the provision
of directors who are employees of REH.
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11. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

Steven Ross is a director of R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited (*RE&H " or, the “Administrator”) and a partner
of Rawlinson & Hunter, Jersey Parnership, which wholly owns REH. Christopher Foulds is 2 director of R&EH.

During the perod, R&H charged Man.Jer administration fees, which include the Company and other entities for
which ManJer is the Manager and R&H is the Administrator, in aggregate, of GBP 1,221,529 (31 December
2022: GBP 214,233), of which GBP 291 402 (31 December 2022: GBP nil) was outstanding at the perod end.

Peter Ziemba is an executive officer of WisdomTree, Inc. and Bryan Governey is European General Counsel
for the WisdomTree, Inc group.

12.  Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed o a number of risks arising from its activities, including credit risk, settlement risk,
liquedity risk and market risk. The Board is responsible for the overall risk management appreach and for
approving the nsk management strategies and principles. The Board meets frequently to consider the risk
exposures of the Company and to determine appropriate management policies. The risk management policies
employed by the Company to manage these are discussed below,

The Commodity Secunties are subject to normal market fuctuations and other risks inherent in investing in
securities and other finaneial instruments. There can be no assurance that any appreciation in the value of
securities will occur, and the capital value of an investor's original investment is not guaranteed. The value of
investments may go down as well as up, and an investor may not get back the original amount invested,

The information provided below is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of all the risks assodated
with the Commaodity Securities and investors should refer to the most recent Prospectuses for a delailed
summany of the risks inherent in investing in the Commodity Securities. Any data provided should not be used
or interpreted as a basis for future forecast or investment performance.

{a) Cradit Risk

Credit nisk primarily refers to the nsk that Authorsed Participants or the Commodity Contract Counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations resulting in finandal loss. Each class of Commodity Securty is
issued under Emited recourse amangements whereby the holders have recourse only to the relevant
Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commaodity Securities) and not to the Commaodity Contracts of any
other class of Commodity Securities or to the Company, therefore limiting the credit risk of the Company in
connection with the issue of the Commeodity Securities,

There are compulsory redemption provisions as outlined in the prospectus that can be triggered by the
Company or the Commadity Contract Counterparties in certain circumstances whereby a compulsory
regemption of all Commodity Securities in issue would be undertaken. Furthermore, there are restrike
mechanisms in certain classes of short and leveraged products that force a re-set of the price where there are
large swings in the relevant index during a trading day, or which may trigger a compulsory redemption of
Commodity Securities if the price ofthose Commodity Securities was to fall to zero within a specified intra-day
perod.

The total camying amounts of the commedity contracts, amounts receivable awaiting setfement and trade and
other receivables best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the Statement of Financial Position date.
Al the reporting date the Company's amounts receivable awaiting settlement and trade and other receivables
are detailed on the Statement of Financial Position.

The value of Commodity Securities and the ability of the Company to repay the redemption price is dependent
on the receipt of such amount from the Commodity Contract Counterparties and may be affected by the credit
rating attached to each Commodity Confract Counterparty. Cumently the Company has two Commaodity
Contract Counterparties, Mermill Lynch Intemational and Citigroup Global Markets Limited. At the reporting
date the exposure to the Commodity Contract Counterparties was split approximately 32% and 68% (2022:
45% and 55%), respectively.
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12. Financial Risk Management (continued)
{2} Credt Risk (continved)

In the event that a Commedity Contract Counterparty was te default, the Company would only transact with
the non-defaulting Commodity Contract Counterparty.  Furthermore, the Company could use the proceeds
resulting from the sale of the collateral {see below) to transact with the nen-defaulting Commedity Contract
Counterparty to replace the affected Commodity Contracts where possible,

To cover the credit risk under the Commeodity Contracts, the Commadity Contract Counterpanies are cbliged
to place an amount of collateral, equal to or greater than the exposure, into a pledged account with a third
party custodian, being the Bank of Mew York Mellon {the "Collateral Custodian®). The level of collateral
deposited into the pledged account is assessed against the tofal cutstanding value of the Commaodity Contracts
outstanding at the end of the previous trading day, which on the 31 December 2023 totalled USD
040,635,291, with collateral pledged with a total value of USD 6,220815842,

The collateral held with the Collateral Custodian is held in accounts in the names of the Commodity Contract
Counterparties. The Company publishes the collateral posted by the Commodity Contract Counterparties
each day on its websile (hitp:lwewowisdomiree eufpricing). In the event that a Commodity Contract
Counterparty defaults on its payment obligations, the Company is entitled to exercise control over the collateral
amounts placed in the pledged account

The realised value of the collateral may differ from the amount owed by the Commadity Contract
Counterparties, as prices fuctuate intraday (i.e. from the fast point the exposure and collateral were valued).
The collateral posted by the Commodity Contract Counterparties can include cash invested in Eligible Money
Market Funds with a minimum rating of A8A, publicly traded debt securties with 2 minimum rating of A- orin
eligible equities (that in summary also meet these minimum requirements). These collateral schemes also
apply strict marging and concentration limits (both by lssuer and Jursdiction) to reduce the fsk of such a loss,
but do not completely remove it. Full details of “Eligible Collateral” can be foundin the Company’s prospectus.

The collateral pledged with the Collateral Custodian is re-assessed on a daily basis to ensure that the value
of the collateral in the pledged account is sufficient relative to value of the Commodity Contracts cutstanding
and to ensure that the eligibility critena for the collateral continues to be met on a daily basis. Should the
quality of the undedying codlateral change an any day, it is removed from the collateral account and replaced
with collateral that meets the sligibility criteria.

The Board monitors credt risk exposure, including through an assessment of the credit rating of the
Commedity Contract Counterparties (Citigroup Global Markets Limited: A+ (2022 A+) (Fitch, 15 September
2023) and Memil Lynch International: A& (2022; AA) (Fitch, 15 September 2023)), in order to ensure the
Company's exposire is managed, and has continued to do so more closely with a fotus on any polential
impact of, or developments relating to the Ukraine Crisis.

bl Selflement Risk

SetHement sk primarly refers to the nsk that an Authorised Parficipant or the Commodity Contract
Counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss.

The directors believe that settlement risk would only be caused by the risk of the Company's trading
counterparty not delivering cash, Commodity Contracts or Commaodity Securities on the settiement date. The
directors feel that this risk is mitigated as a result of the cash or Commodity Securities settling through the
CREST system. The system ensures that the transaction does not settle until both parties have fulfilled their
contractual obgations. Amounts cutstanding in respect of positions vet to sefle are disclosed in notes 7 and
B,

{c)  Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial lrabilities as they fall due. The Company's receivables and payables are all payable on demand and
generally settled an a short-term basis. In addition, amounts in respect of the Management Fee, Licence

Allowance and creation and redemption fees are transfemed from the relevant counterparties directly to ManJer
and there are no cash flows through the Company.
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12. Financial Risk Management (continued)
fe) Liquidiy Risk {continued)

The Commeodity Securities do not have a contractual maturity date and will only be redeemed at the request
of the holder of the security, which may be requested at any time, or in the case of a compulsory redemption.
Generally, only Authonsed Participants can submit applications and redemplions directly with the Company.

Furthermore, Bquidity risk of the Compamy is mitigated because the timing of redemptions of the Commadity
Securities and Commodity Contracts are matched, therefore the Company does not have to wait for a longer-
temn contract to mature in order to pay its debls to ex-securnty holders. Furthermaore, while the agresments
with the Commedity Contract Counterparties include limits (both daily and in the aggregate) on the issue and
cancellation of Commodity Contracts, the Company is not obliged to issue and redeem Commodity Securties
in excess of those limits under the terms of the secunty agreement. Conseguently, the Company has not
presented any tabular information in respect of liquidity risk.

(a) Capfal Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains sufficient
resources for operational purposes, The capital being managed is the Stated Capital as presented in the
Staternent of Changes in Equity. Retained Earmings and the Revaluation Reserve, as presented in the
Staternent of Changes in Equity, are not considered managed capital as these balances relate to unrealised
gains and losses on Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commodity Securities) and Commedity
Securities, which are reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commeodity Securities and the refated
cancellation of Commeodity Contracts and will therefore not be realised. The Company is not subject to any
capital requirements imposed by a regulator and there were no changes in the Company's approach to capital
management during the year,

The Company’s principal activity is the issue and Eting of Commadity Securities. These Commodity Securities
are issued and redeemed as demand reguires. The Company holds a coresponding number of Commaodity
Contracts which matches the total liabdity of the Commodity Securities issued. ManJer supplies or arranges
for the supply of all management and administration services to the Company and pays all management and
administration costs of the Company. In retum for these senvices the Company has an obligation to
remunerate ManJder, which under the terms of the service agreement is equal to the aggregate of the
Management Fee, Licence Allowance and creation and redemption fees earned.

Ag all Commodity Securities in issue are supported by an equivalent number of Commodity Contracts held
with the Commaodity Contract Counterparties and the running costs of the Company are paid by ManJer, the
directors of the Company consider the capital management and its current capital resources are adequate to
maintain the ongoing listing and issue of Commaodity Secunties.

(8) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices (such as index prices, interest rates and foreign exchange
rates) will affect the Company's income or the value of its financial instruments held or issued.

i} Prica Risk

As described abowe, Commodity Securities provide investors with long or short exposure to the
performance of the relevant commodity index. The value of the Company's liability in respect of the
Commodity Securities fluctuates according to the performance of the underlying commeadity index and the
risk of such change in price is managed by the Company by entering into Commadity Conftracts with the
Commodity Contract Counterparties which match the liabdity. Whilst the Commodity Securties are quoted
an the open market, the Company's ultirmate liability retates to its contractual obligations to issue and
redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading day. The Company measures the Commodity
Securities at their fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 rather than at the Contractual Yakee (as described
in the Prospectus). The gain or loss on the difference between the value of the Commaodity Contracts and
the fair value of Commodity Securities would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commadity
Securities and cancellation of the corresponding Commodity Contracts. Refer to note 8 for the further
details regarding fair values,
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12. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(&} Market Risk [comtinued)
i} Price Risk {confinued)

The Company therefore bears no residual financial sk on a contractual basis from a change in the value
of a commodity, commadity index or currency by reference to the futures price. Furthermore, the impact
of price sensitivity is considered immaterial to these financial statements.

However, there is an mherent risk from the point of view of investars as the values of commodities, and
thus the value of the Commodity Securities, may vary widely due to, amongst other things, changing supply
or demand for a particular commodity, government and monetary policy orintervention, interest rate levels
and global or regional political, economic or financial events. The market price of Commodity Secunties
is tand will remain} a function of supply and demand amongst investors wishing to buy and sell Commodity
Securities and the bid-offer spread that the market makers are willing o quate. This is highlighted further
in note 15, and below under the Fair Value Hierarchy,

Ukraing Invasion

Russia has continued military action in the sovereign territory of Ukraine throughout the year ended 31
Decamber 2023 (the “Crsis”). The Crsis has resulted in the implermentation of sanctions and further
actions by govemments which, as well as the Crsis itself, have impacted financial and commodities
rarkets.

Ag the Crisis continues, the Board also continues to closely monitor and assess the impact on the
Company's portfolio operations and valuation and will take any further actions needed or as required under
the terms of the applicable Prospectuses, as facts and circumstances are subject to change and may be
specific to investments and jurisdichons. Whilst it is not currently possible to predict future market
conditions and therefore determine if any further acion may be required on any other classes of
Commaodity Securities, the action that may be required includes, but is not limited to, temporanhy not
accepting applications for Commodity Securities, temporarily suspending Commodity Securties from
trading on Stock Exchanges or a compulsory redemption of Commaodity Securities. The Company has not
intiated any ofthese further actions during the current year or subsequently to date. Any such action will
be undertaken in accordance with the constitutive documents of the Commodity Securnties. Furthermare,
thers are mechanisms within the constitutive documents of the Commadity Secunties that enable the
Commadity Contract Counterparties to request a compulsory redemption in certain circumstances as set
out and explained within the Prospectuses.

i} Interest Rate Risk

The mulbpher used in the prcing of the Commodity Contracts or the Commadity Securbes takes into
account the incremental capital enhancement component of the Commedity Security, which includes the
impact of interest rates. This incremental capital enhancement component of the Commodity Contracts
and Commodity Securities is attributable to the security holder, As a result, the Company does not have
gignificant exposure to interest rate risk.

M) Curmency Fisk

The directors do not consider the Company bs have a sighifizant exposure bo currency fsk ansing from the
current economic uncertainties facing a number of countries around the world as the gains or losses on
the liability represented by the Commodity Securities are matehed economically by comesponding losses
or gains attributable to the Commadity Contracts.

il Senskivly Analysis
IFRS 7 recuires disclosure of a sensitivity analysis for each type of market nsk to which the Company is

exposed to at the reporting date, showing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by a
reasgnably possible change to the relevant risk variable,
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12. Financial Risk Management (continued)
{1 Senstily Analysis (continued)

The Company's rights and liability in respect of Commodity Securities and Commodity Contracts, respectively,
relates toits contractual obligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading
day. The fair value of each creation and redemption of Commodity Secunties is recorded using the price by
reference to the value of the commodity indices calculated and published by Bloomberg or Solactive. However,
under IFRS 13, the liability is recorded at fair value (being the on-exchange price) which results in a mismatch,
Ag described in note 15 this mismatch is reversed on the redemption of Commodity Securities.

As a result, the Company’s contractual and economic liability in connection with the issue and redemplion of
Commodity Securities is matched by movements in corresponding Commodity Transactions. Whilst sensitivity
analysis could be performed on this mismatch, the Company does not have any net exposure to market price
risk. Furthermore, the result of the numeric sensftivity is considered not material by the directors and in their
opinion, no sensitivity analysis is required to be disclosed,

(g) Fair Value Hsrarchy
The levels in the hierarchy are defined as follows:

+ Level1 fair value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

« Level 2 fair values based on valuation technigues using cbservable inputs other than quoted
prices,

« Leveld fair values based on valuaton techniques using inputs that are not based on observable
market data.

Categonsation within the hierarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement of each relevant asset/liability.

The Company is required to utilise the available on-market price as the Commodity Securities are quoted and
traded on the open market. Where the market on which the Commodity Securiies prices are quoted i3
determined to be active at the relevant reporting date, the Commodity Securiies are classified as level 1
financial liabilities. Where the market on which the Commodity Secunties prices are quoted is determined to
be mactive at the relevant reporting date, the Commodty Secunties are classified as level 2 financial lmbilibes.
The Company values the Level 2 Commodity Securities wsing the unadjusted latest traded market price
available at each reporting date. This is considered to most appropriately reflect the price at which transactions
would occur as atthe reporting date.,

The Company’s fghts in respect of Commaodity Contracts relate to its contractual cbligations to issue and
redeem Commodity Securiies at set prices on each trading day. These prices are based on an agreed formula
{set cut in the Prospectus), and are equal to the published MAVs of each class of Commodity Security.
Therefore, Commodity Confracts are classified as level 2 financial assets, asthe value is calculated using third
party pricing sources supported by observable, venfiable inputs,

The categorisation of the Company's assets and (liabilities) measured at fair value are as shown below:

Fair Value as at 31 December

2023 2022
uso uso
Level 1
Commodity Securities {5,097 681,648) {5,443,574,868)
Lewvel 2
Commodity Securities - {12.28574%)
Commodity Contracts 5.882.333 244 5.526,745 526
5,882,333,244 5,514,458,777
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12. Financial Risk Management (continued)
(g) Fair Value Hisrarchy (continued)

The Commeodty Secunties and the Commodity Contracts are recognised at fair value upon initial recognition
and revalued to fair value in line with the Company's accounting policy. There are no assets or liabilties
classified in level 3. Transfers between levels are recognised if the pimary market en which the Cemmodity
Securities prices are quoted was delermined to be inactive at the relevant reporting date. The Company
considers both the last trade date and trading volumes during the 5 trading days leading up to each reporting
date to determine if the market for a particular Commaodity Security is active. Transfers as a result of the
analysis of the activity levels of the market are identified and recognised at each reporting date.

There were no transfers or reclassifications between Level 1 and Level 2 for any of the assets during the year
or at the reporting date. As at 31 December 2023 Commodity Securities with a fair value of USD nil (2022
U3SD 12,285,749) were transfemed from Level 1 to Level 2. Commodity Securities with a fair value of USD
7,006 966 (2022: USD 3 465 B35) were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1.

13. Ultimate Controlling Party

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of IFRS the directors have determined that o enlity meets the
definition of immediate parent or ultimate controfiing party. The holder of issued equity shares is HoldCo, a
Jerzey registered company. WisdomTree, Inc (formerly WisdomTree Invedtments, Inc) is the ultimate
contrelling party of HoldCe.

14. Events Occurring After the Reporting Period

There have been no significant events that have atcurred since the end of the reporting period up to the date
of signing the Financial Statements which would impact on the financial position of the Company disclosed in
the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023, or on the results and cash flows of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

15. MNon-GAAP and Non-Statutory Information

A5 a result of the mis-match in the accounting valuation of Commodty Contracts (held to support the
Commeodity Securities) and Commodity Securities (as disclosed in notes 7 and 8) the profits and losses and
comprehensive income ofthe Company presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Cther Comprehensive
Ingome reflect gains and losses which represent the movement in the cunulative difference batween the value
of the Commadity Contracts and the price of Commodity Securities.

The Statement of Changes in Equity also reflects the fair value movements on both the Commodity Contracts
{heid to support the Commodity Secunties) and the Commedity Securities, These gains or losses on the
difference bebween the value of the Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commedity Securities) and the
price of Commeodity Securities would be reversed on a subseguent redemption of the Commeodity Securities
and cancellation of the coresponding Commadity Contracts.

Furthermore, each class of Commodity Security is issued under limited recourse arrangements whereby the
holders have recourse ondy to the relevant Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commedity Securities)
and not to the Commodity Contracts of any other class of Cormmodity Security or to the Company, As a result,
the Company dees not make gains from trading in the underlying Commeodity Contracts (held to support the
Commadity Securities) and, from a commercial perspective {with the exception of the impact of Management
Fees and Licence Allowance) gains and losses in respect of Commodity Contracts (held to support the
Commadity Securities) will always be offset by a comesponding loss or gain on the Commadity Securities and
the Company does not retain any nek gains or losses.,
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15. Hon-GAAF and Non-Statutory Information (continued)

The mismatched accounting values are as shown below:

Year ended 31 December
2023 2022
uso uso
Change in Fair Value of Commedity Contracts (426 576,1186) 856,233 518
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities: 340,342 803 (781 640 244)
(86,233,313) 64,593,275

To reflect the commercial results. the Company has presented below a non-GAAP and neon-Statutory
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity for the
penod which reflect an Adustment from Market Value to Contractual Value (as set out in the Prospectus) of
Commedity Securiies, together with those gains or losses being transferred to a separate resenve which is
deemed non-distributable .

{a) Non-GAAPR and Non-Statutory Stalement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive fncome
Year ended 31 December

2023 2022
uspD uso
Income 42 856,333 28,7658 450
Expenses {42 B56,333) {29,768 450)
Result Before Fair Value Movement - -
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Contracts 426,576, 116) B56,233 518
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities: 340,342 B03 (791 640243}
{Loss) ! Profit for the Year (86,233,313) 64,593,276
Adpstrnent from Market Value to Contractual Walue (as set cut
in the Prospectus) of Commodity Securties 86,233,313 (64,593 276)
Adjusted Result - -
-39 wiwrwr, wilsdomitres eu
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49,088,704 162,300,155 26,264,454 (6,676,294) (1,039,265) 155,623,861 24,255,188
34,290,256  1,592,201,880 247,850,106 10,348,835 1,610,951 1,602,550,715 249,461,057
3,056,213 58,298,762 9,075,077 7,061,912 1,099,293 65,360,674 10,174,369
9,306,045 260,765,256 40,592,024 2,369,855 368,903 263,135,111 409,690,927
51,086 1,582,040 246,268 392,816 61,148 1,974,856 307,416
212,041 1,045,761 164,189 244,669 39,799 1,310,429 203,988
1,804,435 2,627,429 408,999 4,831,179 752,046 7,458,608 1,161,044
1,008,258 22,981,806 3,577,463 6,608,022 1,028,638 29,589,828 4,606,101
36,830,420  1,327,767,131 206,686,870 (51,798,489) (8,063,212) 1,275,968,642 198,623,659
933,921 27,893,600 4,342,057 (5,500,576) (856,247) 22,393,024 3,485,810
1,548,992 4,610,740 717,731 21,303 3,316 4,632,043 721,047
81,129,344 768,894,607 119,689,979 (38,117,190) (5,933,512) 730,777,418 113,756,467
240,952 5,926,565 922,559 (623,878) (97,166) 5,302,687 825,443
145,618 4,728,121 736,003 (1,111,533) (173,027) 3,616,589 562,976
73,822 1,540,333 239,776 (146,308) (22,775) 1,394,025 217,001
10,480,764 215,530,771 33,550,597  (102,266,395)  (15,919,298) 113,264,337 17,631,299
6,661,474 196,239,652 30,547,645 (94,561,496)  (14,719,915) 101,678,155 15,827,730
2,441,991 51,865,275 8,073,608 (1,684,713) (262,251) 50,180,562 7,811,357
349,086 10,848,324 1,688,704 (24,580) (3,826)) 10,823,744 1,684,878
362,959 2,919,272 454,428 (526,912) (82,022) 2,392,360 372,407
789,797 5,946,918 925,727 3,478,128 541,423 9,425,046 1,467,150
114,158 6,214,702 967,412 96,686 15,051 6,311,388 982,462
81,372 3,867,368 602,014 137,439 21,395 4,004,808 623,408
3,845,490 131,432,502 20,459,440 (31,681,888) (4,931,761) 99,750,614 155,276,679
2,366,794 29,044,679 4,521,240 (649,137) (101,048) 28,395,541 4,420,192
3,018,749 27,690,180 4,310,392 (1,116,362) (173,779) 26,573,817 4,136,613
4,924,772,829 766,614,752  (300,883,906)  (46,837,983) 4,623,888,923 719,777,669
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1,000,000 3 0.51 ©) ©) 3 0.49
1,000,000 48 7.47 ) ©) 47 7.27
1,000,000 19 3.00 2 0 21 3.33
1,000,000 29 4.54 ) ©) 28 4.40
1,000,001 30 4.61 9 1 39 6.02
1,000,000 0.89 0 0 0.96
1,000,000 0.39 2 0 0.64
1,000,000 0.16 28 4 29 4.57
1,000,000 34 5.24 1 0 35 5.39
1,000,000 0.21 23 4 24 3.73
1,000,000 0.47 ©) ©) 3 0.47
1,000,000 1.44 9 1 18 2.80
1,000,000 23 3.59 ) ©) 22 3.43
1,000,000 0 0.07 24 4 25 3.87
1,000,000 21 3.21 ) ©) 19 2.94
1,000,000 0 0.00 11 2 11 1.68
1,000,000 28 4.35 13) @ 15 2.38
1,000,000 24 3.68 0 0 24 3.68
1,000,000 21 3.26 ©) 0 21 3.20
1,000,000 31 4.81 0 1 31 4.83
1,000,000 8 1.26 ) 0 7 1.03
1,000,000 10 1.58 2 0 12 1.86
1,000,000 53 8.21 3 ) 55 8.61
1,000,000 47 7.24 3 2 49 7.66
1,000,000 1 0.12 25 ©) 26 4.04
1,000,000 10 1.49 ) ©) 9 1.37
461 72 121 19 582 01
36,577,694 249,899,671 38,900,632  (17,670,763)  (2,750,719) 232,228,908 36,149,913
8,287,364 100,275,654 15,609,410  (11,606,765)  (1,806,767) 88,668,889 13,802,643
12,472,230 70,483,659 10,971,839  (25,492,313)  (3,968,261) 44,991,346 7,003,578
5,057,502 25,240,741 3,929,100 (3,868,839) (602,243) 21,371,901 3,326,857
31,132,090 518,191,218 80,665,236  (68,498,471)  (10,678,381) 449,592,745 69,985,855
489,959 1,223,743 190,494 (63,286) (9,851) 1,160,457 180,643
204,361 3,742,079 582,511 (78,421) (12,207) 3,663,658 570,303
6,849,306 136,998,153 21,325,818 19,313,278 3,006,401 156,311,431 24,332,219
446,783 1,790,613 278,736 478,056 74,417 2,268,669 353,152
1,107,845,531 172,452,775 (107,587,526)  (16,747,612)  1,000,258,005 155,705, 162
6,032,618,822 939,067,609  (408,471,310)  (63,584,687) 5,624,147,511 875,482,922
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(48,500) (153,400) (23,879) (357) (56) (153,758) (23,935)
(50,460)  (2,397,857) (373,262) 39,616 6,167 (2,358,242) (367,096)
(21,100) (442,609) (68,899) (8,639) (1,345) (451,248) (70,244)

(7,000) (215,617) (33,564) 10,184 1,585 (205,432) (31,979)
(10,000) (347,818) (54,143) 1,374 214 (346,444) (53,929)
5,000 120,636 18,779 (749) @ain 119,887 18,662
(408,068)  (3,681,503) (573,081) 5,806 904 (3,675,697) (572,177)
1,000 19,039 2,964 (155) @4 18,884 2,940
(703,500)  (7,609,338) (1,184,508) 6,696 1,042 (7,602,641)  (1,183,465)
51,500 791,155 123,155 (5,079) (791) 786,076 122,365
14,300 293,851 45,742 - - 293,851 45,742
5,700 68,021 10,588 - - 68,021 10,588
(6,657) (172,730) (26,888) 50 8 (172,680) (26,880)
(13,728,171) (2,136,996) 48,748 7,588  (13,679,423)  (2,129,407)

(194,400)  (1,237,921) (192,701) 6,230 970 (1,231,691) (191,731)
(110,000) (399,310) (62,159) 2,505 390 (396,805) (61,769)
164,778 2,385,789 371,384 (6,154) (958) 2,379,634 370,426
53,100 1,218,759 189,718 (6,937) (1,080) 1,211,822 188,638
1,967,316 306,242 (4,357) (686) 1,962,960 305,564

(11,760, 855) (1,830,753) 44,391 6,910  (11,716,463)  (1,823,843)
6,020,857,967 037,236,855  (408,426,919)  (63,577,776) 5,612,431,048 873,659,079
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9,335 510,340 79,442 29,865 4,649 540,205 84,001
37,309 2,223,675 346,148 (124,589) (19,394) 2,099,086 326,754
2,734,015 425,590 (94,724) (14,745) 2,639,291 410,845
1,000,000 58 9.04 ) (©) 58 9.01
999,999 24 3.72 () ©) 23 3.58
1,000,000 50 7.71 %) (€] 46 7.10
1,000,000 8 1.23 ©) ) 8 1.18
1,000,000 13 2.00 ©) ©) 13 1.98
1,000,000 3 0.45 ©) ©) 2 0.38
155 24 ) ) 149 23
31,224 1,179,244 183,567 (341,287) (53.,126) 837,958 130,441
252,854 3,306,704 514,738 (260,263) (40,514) 3,036,442 474,224
124,821 3,725,006 579,835 (346,923) (54,004) 3,378,083 525,849
52,480 1,370,259 214,702 (244,844) (38,114) 1,134,415 176,589
9,590,214 1,492,861  (1,193,316) (185,758) 8,396,897 1,307,103
12,324,384 1,918,475  (1,288,046) (200,504) 11,036,338 1,717,872
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(2,661) (153,989) (23,971) - - (153,989) (23,971)
(7,018) (88,903) (13,839) 4,349 677 (84,554) (13,162)
(242,892) (37,810) 4,349 677 (238,543) (37,133)
12,081,492 1,880,665 (1,283,697) (199,827) 10,797,794 1,680,839
323,212 5,039,156 784,420 192,188 29,917 5,231,344 814,337
259,034 4,050,868 630,578 (65,907) (10,259) 3,984,961 620,319
68,867 1,230,835 191,508 (13,106) (2,040) 1,217,729 189,558
7,153 (8,292,161) 1,290,799 11,273,995 1,754,966 2,981,835 464,167
362,366 702,921 109,420 1,454,962 226,487 2,157,883 335,907
986,007 16,522,284 2,571,914 2,646,395 411,951 19,168,679 2,983,892
362,893 2,606,957 405,812 275,925 42,952 2,882,882 448,764
21,860,860 3,402,971 15,764.452 2,453,973 37,625,312 5,856.944
76,559 3,493,241 543,776 790,622 123,072 4,283,863 666,848
19,760 339,807 52,896 221,983 34,555 561,790 87,451
3,833,048 596,671 1,012,605 157,627 4,845,654 754,299
2,563,908 3,999,642 16,777,058 2,611,601 42,470,966 6,611,243
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9,600 155,381 24,187 - - 155,381 24,187
(2,262) (126,570) (19,703) - - (126,570) (19,703)
28,810 4,485 - - 28,810 4,485

25,722,719 4,004,127 16,777,058 2,611,601 42,499,766 6,615,728

2,221,1414 5,238,362 815,430 (588,123) (91,550) 4,650,239 723,879
334,033 9,284,593 1,445,286 8,280,039 1,288,912 17,564,623 2,735,198
435,235 23,163,964 3,604,818 3,765,193 581,109 26,929,157 4,191,927
5,438,716 3,153,463 490,884 2,314,074 360,220 56,467,537 851,104
276,487 (1,116,410) 173,786 4,864,271 757,197 3,747,860 583,411
1,219,320 9,494,282 1,477,927 (307,170) (47,816) 9,187,112 1,430,112
1,677,417 4,726,405 735,736 (1,244,666) (193,751) 2,481,739 541,985
109,949,983 71,865,733 11,186,979  (55,006,629) (9,562,607) 16,859,104 2,624,372
365,855 17,567,499 2,734,645 (9,965,111) (1,551,219) 7,602,388 1,183,426
10,531,621 120,809,805 18,805,858 (9,379,355) (1,460,037) 111,430,450 17,345,821
5,993,969 13,926,763 2,167,910 (1,653,455) (257,385) 12,273,307 1,910,524
7,591,615 41,385,644 6,442,296 (3.606,705) (561,438) 37,778,939 5,880,858
444,406 (248,232) 38,641 2,036,312 316,983 1,788,080 278,341
1,004,716 12,186,893 1,897,073 (4,729,920) (736,283) 7,456,974 1,160,790
331,438,762 51,593,415  (65,221,245)  (10,152,665) 266,217,517 41,440,750
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307,726 3,552,993 553,077 (687,401) (107,004) 2,865,592 446,072
58,748 2,433,367 378,790 (238,208) (37,081) 2,195,159 341,709
5,986,361 931,867 (925,610) (144,085) 5,060,751 787,782
377,425,123 52,525,282 (66,146,855) (10,296,750) 271,278,268 42,228,532
9,000 474,190 73,815 (938) (146) 473,252 73,669
3,500 48,816 7,559 @1,372) (214) 47,444 7,385
94,500 196,149 30,534 - - 196,149 30,534
(947,500) (150,534) (23,433) 5,296 824 (145,238) (22,609)
4,900 103,483 16,109 (1,662) (259) 101,821 15,850
164,000 1,735,733 270,193 (521) (81) 1,735,212 270,112
(276,300) (568,356) (88,473) 2,602 405 (565,754) (88,068)
20,600 102,514 15,958 - - 102,514 15,958
9,700 43,772 6,814 (4,744) (738) 39,028 6,075
1,985,767 309,144 (1,340) (209) 1,984,427 308,906
399,410,800 52,834,306  (66,148,195)  (10,296,969) 23,262,605 42,537,437
3,719,299 16,313 2,539 11,541,777 1,796,651 11,558,089 1,799,190
207,241 2,246,177 349,651 172,073 26,786 2,418,250 376,437
29,469,718 35,602,211 5,556,028  (16,268,390)  (2,532,419) 19,423,821 3,023,609
37,954,701 5,908,218  (4,554,540) (708,982) 33,400, 161 5,199,236
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3
(224,600) (810,830) (124,817) 103,863 16,168 (697,967) (108,649)
(7,900) (71,110) (11,069) (21,073) (3,280) (92,183) (14,350)
37,700 25,810 4,018 (962) (150) 24,848 3,868
(847,130) (131,868) 81,828 12,738 (765,302) (119,131)
37,107,571 5,776,350 (4,472,712) (696, 245) 32,634,589 5,080,105
6,446,016,937  1,003,419,227  (463,683,694)  (72,179,322)  5,982,333,244 931,239,904
(10,836, 299) (1,686,833) 129,228 20,166  (10,707,071)  (1.666,716)
6,453,180,638  1,001,732,394  (463,554,466)  (72,159,206)  5,971,626,172 929,573,188
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)
1
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
152,386,459,770.80 23,721,238,260
152,386,459,770.80 23,721,238,260
19,830,287,338
1 - —_
/7))
1 7.68453 1,196.213
WisdomTree WTI 2024 3 31
760,184,284.28 118,334,087
760,184 ,284.28 118,334,087
72,901,988
1 - -
/)
1 10.42748 1,623.194
WisdomTree o024 3 31
7,045,684.23 1,096,766
7,045,684.23 1,096,766
120,872
1 - -
/7))
1 58.29046 9,073.784
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WisdomTree 2024 3 31
127,889,664.49 19,907,945
127,889,664.49 19,907,945
41,369,915
1 - -
« /
1 3.09137 481.218
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
1,690,827,890.21 263,202,724
1,690,827,890.21 263,202,724
47,160,870
1 - -
« 7/
1 35.85235 5,580.956
WisdomTree o024 3 31
114,494 ,393.49 17,822,770
114,494 ,393.49 17,822,770
7,466,538
1 —_— -_—
« /
1 15.33433 2,387.019
WisdomTree 2024 3 31

4,396,688,673.34

684,410,542

4,396,688,673.34

684,410,542

188,938,447

AR
~

23.27048

3,622.400
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WisdomTree 2024 3 31
606,770,720.25 94,452,964
606,770,720.25 94,452,964
27,448,526
l - -
( /
1 22.10577 3,441.094
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
10,873,605.85 1,692,640
10,873,605.85 1,692,640
379,986
1 - -
« /
1 28.61581 4,454 .480
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
88,778,898.17 13,819,767
88,778,898.17 13,819,767
8,160,821
1 - -
« /
1 10.87867 1,693.429
WisdomTree o024 3 31
47,579,660.93 7,406,488
47,579,660.93 7,406,488
12,698,330
1 - -
« /
1 3.74692 583.265
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WisdomTree

2024 3 31
426,602,014.82 66,407,003
426,602,014.82 66,407,003
29,826,342
1 - -
« /
1 14.30286 2,226.455
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
210,185,385.97 32,718,508
210,185,385.97 32,718,508
34,211,894
1 - -
« /
1 6.14363 956.349
WisdomTree 2024 3 31
19,521,619.06 3,038,833
19,521,619.06 3,038,833
7,339,406
l - -
( /
1 2.65984 414 .043
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WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 2,153,387,885 1,102,217,396 2,007,070,239
15 2020 12 31 13,587,526,500 | 11,282,269,201 4,312,327,538
16 2021 12 31 8,740,192,500 9,989,707,000 3,062,813,038
17 2022 12 31 9,681,458,500 8,859,565, 600 3,884,705,938
18 2023 12 131 24,268,120,398 | 28,142,345,572 10,480,764
WisdomTree WTI
14 2019 12 31 110,029,187 125,398,965 57,427,466
15 2020 12 31 973,821,652 701,356,479 329,892,639
16 2021 12 31 252,385,846 361,904,310 220,374,175
17 2022 12 31 114,744,108 243,007,310 92,110,973
18 2023 12 31 104,218,788 115,200,417 81,129,344
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 422,900 409,248 156,266
15 2020 12 31 1,167,200 1,013,579 309,887
16 2021 12 31 147,150 264,826 192,211
17 2022 12 31 339,900 394,900 137,211
18 2023 12 31 -146,800 -202,639 -81,372
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 43,275,300 56,244,377 11,532,283
15 2020 12 31 35,174,945 32,438,348 14,268,880
16 2021 12 31 54,065,722 54,849,241 13,485,361
17 2022 12 31 67,747,393 37,767,463 43,465,291
18 2023 12 31 35,393,873 29,770,460 49,088,704
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WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 13,283,699 14,886,588 6,927,911
14 2019 12 31 13,446,373 11,738,124 8,636,160
15 2020 12 31 20,189,277 18,059,691 10,765,746
16 2021 12 31 29,283,004 26,508,554 13,540,196
17 2022 12 31 16,112,323 14,924,300 14,728,219
18 2023 12 31 52,956,413 30,854,212 36,830,420
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 10,956,548 16,800,439 34,915,160
15 2020 12 31 14,900,549 20,429,084 29,386,625
16 2021 12 31 14,411,042 33,197,538 10,600,129
17 2022 12 31 9,039,458 12,166,500 7,473,087
18 2023 12 31 4,610,323 5,421,936 6,661,474
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 33,485,598 53,286,221 82,397,569
15 2020 12 31 156,493,700 161,812,376 77,078,893
16 2021 12 31 154,408,306 160,918,100 70,569,099
17 2022 12 31 164,068,100 101,488,700 133,148,499
18 2023 12 31 94,636,080 223,939,089 3,845,490
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 27,077,044 30,769,905 34,725,311
15 2020 12 31 82,099,200 78,600,472 38,224,039
16 2021 12 31 98,562,536 113,036,128 23,750,447
17 2022 12 31 94,377,300 95,518,900 22,608,847
18 2023 12 31 14,361,351 36,036,277 933,921
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 672,307 1,052,403 542,973
15 2020 12 31 905,504 961,300 487,177
16 2021 12 31 1,898,642 1,804,000 581,819
17 2022 12 31 2,316,700 2,341,200 557,319
18 2023 12 31 150,350 358,583 349,086
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WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 5,039,285 13,238,743 18,853,038
15 2020 12 31 3,145,597 11,376,920 10,621,715
16 2021 12 31 13,709,100 9,495,083 14,835,732
17 2022 12 31 4,686,300 8,313,100 11,208,932
18 2023 12 31 3,027,500 5,949,068 8,287,364
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 23,178,055 25,792,328 8,578,894
15 2020 12 31 28,053,107 23,130,787 13,501,214
16 2021 12 31 29,307,229 19,787,011 23,021,432
17 2022 12 31 21,857,500 29,236,000 15,642,932
18 2023 12 31 37,300,470 40,471,172 12,472,230
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 32,916,947 40,254,506 9,767,189
15 2020 12 31 20,676,329 15,536,873 14,906,645
16 2021 12 31 39,690,109 14,243,880 40,352,874
17 2022 12 31 24,286,201 26,818,119 37,820,956
18 2023 12 31 11,013,758 17,702,624 31,132,090
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 36,303,801 60,151,830 53,024,333
15 2020 12 31 15,963,069 38,599,068 30,388,334
16 2021 12 31 31,715,648 23,120,691 38,983,291
17 2022 12 31 59,579,521 50,361,300 48,201,512
18 2023 12 31 17,000,781 28,624,599 36,577,694
WisdomTree
14 2019 12 31 420,150 559,603 6,771,376
15 2020 12 31 3,483,030 1,704,000 8,550,406
16 2021 12 31 4,500,000 5,109,000 7,941,406
17 2022 12 31 10,072,900 11,555,500 6,458,806
18 2023 12 31 316,000 1,717,304 5,057,502
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited (the
““company””) for the year ended 31 December 2023 which comprise the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of
Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 15, including a
summary of material accounting policy information. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““IFRS”7).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

a2/ give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December 2023
and of its loss for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS;

52 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, including the UK FRC"s Ethical
Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors® assessment of the company®s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

32 We obtained an understanding of management®s rationale for using the going concern
basis of accounting and confirmed our understanding of management®s Going Concern
assessment process including the process they adopted to capture all key factors in
their assessment;

32 We obtained management”s board approved going concern assessment covering the
period of assessment from the date of signing to 30 April 2025. Management®s
assessment has focussed on a combination of;

32 Assessing the ongoing viability of the company through continued involvement
of its Commodity Contract Counterparties and Authorised Participants;

52 Assessing the ongoing ability of WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited
(““ManJer””) to continue to meet its obligations as manager and pay all
expenses of the company. This includes consideration of the assets under
management of all managed issuer entities (““Issuer Platform”) which
includes this company. In assessing this ability management considered the
fixed and variable operating costs that could be supported under varying
levels of total assets under management for the Issuer Platform.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

32 Using our understanding of the business, we evaluated whether the considerations
and method adopted by management in assessing going concern was appropriate.

iz We performed reverse stress testing on the forecasts to understand how severe the
downside scenarios would have to be, and the reduction in platform assets under
management, to result in the platform generating insufficient management fees to
cover operating costs. We observed significant headroom in management fee income,
at current Assets Under Management (““AUM”?) levels, in excess of fixed and AUM
based costs which supports management®s assumption that the lIssuer Platform is able
to absorb heightened levels of volatility in AUM.

32 We considered whether management®s disclosures, in the Annual Report and financial
statements, sufficiently and appropriately discloses information required in
respect of the going concern assumption applied through consideration of relevant
disclosure standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to 30 April
2025.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit 32 Valuation of Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss -
matters Commodity Contracts
32 Valuation of Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss — Commodity Securities
Materiality (i Overall materiality of US$60.1m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit scope for the company. This enables us to form
an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the company and effectiveness of controls, changes in the business
environment and the potential impact of climate change when assessing the level of work to
be performed. All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Changes from the prior year
There were no scoping changes compared to the prior year.
Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how climate change will impact
companies. The company has determined that there are no directly observed impacts of
climate change on the business due to the nature of the company and its operations. This
is explained on page 5 in the corporate social responsibility section, which form part of
the ““Other information,”” rather than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on
these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on evaluating management®s
assessment of the impact of climate risk, physical and transition, the adequacy of the
company”s disclosures in the financial statements as set out in note 2 and conclusion that
there was no further impact of climate change to be taken into account as the material
assets and liabilities are valued based on market pricing as required by IFRS.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Assets at fair value through
profit and loss — Commodity
Contracts

USD 5,982,333, 244
(2022: USD 5,526,745,526)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 25-26); and
Note 7 of the Financial
Statements (pages 29-30)

Risk that Commodity
Contracts values are
misstated or that valuations
are incorrectly calculated,
including as a result of
management override of
internal controls.

The Commodity Contracts held
comprise a range of
commodity derivatives that
are used by the company to
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure
that is designed to track
the price of commodity
futures.

The Commodity Contracts are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Asset.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied (including the risk
that the valuation
methodology has not been
determined in accordance
with the terms of the
applicable prospectus) and
in the source and timing of
valuation inputs utilised.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
company”s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Contracts.

We assessed the design of
the company®s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Contract valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

We obtained independent
confirmation, from the
contract counterparty, of
the contractual value of
contracts as at the
reporting date.

We agreed the valuation
methodology applied to the
definition set out in the
prospectus and validation of
key inputs used to derive
the value of the Commodity
Contracts. This included
agreement on a sample basis
of the price of the
referenced commodities or
commodities indices to
external pricing sources as
at 31 December 2023 against
relevant IFRS requirements.

We recalculated the value of
a sample of Commodity
Contracts held at 31
December 2023, representing
93% of the total value of
Commodity Contracts held.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Contracts that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of the Commodity Contracts
is notmaterially misstated.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Board

The balance of Commodity
Contracts represents in
excess of 99% of the
company”s total assetsas at
31 December 2023 (2022:99%)
and therefore any error in
valuation approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Specifically, in addressing
the risks of management
override of controls, we
assessed the Commodity
Contracts valuation for
evidence of management bias,
considered whether any
significant unusual
transactions arose based on
our understanding of the
Company and its activities
and tested the
appropriateness of journal
entries recorded in the
general ledger and other
adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial
statements.

Valuation of Financial
Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss -
Commodity Securities

USD 5,997,681,648
(2022: USD 5,455,860,617)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 25-26); and
Note 8 of the Financial
Statements (pages 30-31)

Risk that values of
securities in issue are
misstated or that valuations
are incorrectly captured.

The Commodity Securities in
issue comprise a range of
financial instruments that
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure to
movements in prices of
associated commodities
without needing to take
physical delivery.

The Commodity Securities are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Liability.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
company”"s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Securities.

We assessed the design of
the company®s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Securities valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

We assessed the
appropriateness of the
valuation methodology
applied, comprising the use
of traded security prices to
value the Commodity
Securities, against relevant
IFRS requirements.

We independently obtained
security prices using
external pricing sources at
the balance sheet date.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Securities that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of Commodity Securities is
not materially misstated.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk Our response to the risk Key observations
communicated to the Board

The risk comprises the risk | We recalculated the value of

of errors in both the Commodity Securities held at

valuation methodology 31 December 2023, by

applied and, in the source, multiplying the security

and timing of valuation price by the confirmed

inputs utilised. security balance in issue.
This represented 100% of the

The balance of Commodity total value of Commodity

Securities represents in Securities in issue.

excess of 99% of the
company”s total liabilities
as at 31 December 2023
(2022: 99%) and therefore
any error in valuation
approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the company to be US$60.1 million (2022: US$55.5 million),
which is 1% (2022: 1%)

of Total _Assets. We believe that Total Assets provides us with an appropriate basis for
audit materiality as Total

Assets reflects the relevant exposure of holders of issued securities to the underlying

asset base,

There has been no change in the basis of materiality used compared to the prior year.
Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an

amount to reduce to an appropriately Ilow Ievel the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.
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On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the company"s
overall control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 50% (2022:
50%) of our planning materiality, namely US$30.05m (2022: US$27.75m). We have set
performance materiality in both periods at this percentage in response to the value of
errors identified and corrected in the financial statement close process.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of US$3.01m (2022: US$2.78m), which is set at 5% of materiality, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of
materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in
forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on
pages 1 to 11, other than the financial statements and our auditor"s report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

22 proper accounting records have not been kept by the company, or proper returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

52 the financial statements are not in agreement with the company®s accounting records
and returns; or

52 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® Responsibilities set out on page
11, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
both those charged with governance of the company and management.

:x We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the company and determined that the most significant are those that
relate to the reporting framework, comprising IFRS and the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and
regulations that may have an effect on the presentation and disclosure of the
financial statements being the applicable Listing Rules of the Central Bank of
Ireland (Investment Market Conduct) and UK Listing Authority Rules;

82 We understood how WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited is complying with those
frameworks by making enquiries of the directors and key management of the
administrative service provider. We corroborated our enquiries through our review
of minutes of Board meetings, papers provided to the board and correspondence
received from regulatory bodies and noted no contradictory evidence;
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22/ We assessed the susceptibility of the company"s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the investment
objectives of the Company and discussing with management to understand where
reporting was considered susceptible to fraud. Where this risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures in response to the identified fraud risk.
These procedures included testing of transactions to supporting documentation,
testing of specific accounting journal entries, and focussed testing, including
that referred to in the key audit matters section above. These procedures were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free
from fraud or error;

N
>o

52 Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reading board
minutes to identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations, a review of any
associated reporting submitted to the board on compliance with laws and regulations
and enquiries of members of management of the appointed administrative service
provider;

82 As the Company operates in the asset management industry the Audit Partner
assessed the experience of the engagement team and concluded that the team had the
appropriate competence and capabilities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council®s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor®s report.

Other matters we are required to address

22 Following the recommendation from those charged with governance, we were appointed by
the company on 3 December 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2019 and subsequent financial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and
reappointments is 5 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December
2023.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC"s Ethical Standard were not provided to
the company and we remain independent of the company in conducting the audit. The audit
opinion is consistent with the additional report to those charged with governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with Article
113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company®s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company®s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Christopher David Gordon Barry, FCA
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Jersey, Channel Islands

Date: 24 April 2024
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited (the
““company””) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of
Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 15, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““IFRS”>7).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

22 give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December 2022
and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS; and

52 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, including the UK FRC"s Ethical
Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors® assessment of the company®s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

32 We obtained an understanding of management®s rationale for using the going concern
basis of accounting and confirmed our understanding of management®s Going Concern
assessment process including the process they adopted to capture all key factors in
their assessment;

32 We obtained management”s board approved going concern assessment covering the
period of assessment from the date of signing to 30 April 2024. Management s
assessment has focussed on a combination of;

32 Assessing the ongoing viability of the company through continued involvement
of its Commodity Transaction Counterparty and Authorised Participants;

52 Assessing the ongoing ability of WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited
(““ManJer””) to continue to meet its obligations as manager and pay all
expenses of the Company. This includes consideration of the assets under
management of all managed issuer entities (““Issuer Platform”) which
includes this Company. In assessing this ability we considered the fixed and
variable operating costs that could be supported under varying levels of
total assets under management for the Issuer Platform.
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32 Using our understanding of the business, we evaluated whether the considerations
and method adopted by management in assessing going concern was appropriate.

iz We performed reverse stress testing on the forecasts to understand how severe the
downside scenarios would have to be, and in particular the reduction in platform
assets under management, to result in the platform generating insufficient
management fees to cover operating costs. We observed significant headroom in
management fee income, at current Assets Under Management (““AUM>7?) levels, in
excess of fixed costs which supports management®s assumption that the Issuer
Platform is able to absorb heightened levels of volatility in AUM.

32 We considered whether management®s disclosures, in the Annual Report and financial
statements, sufficiently and appropriately discloses information required in
respect of the going concern assumption applied through consideration of relevant
disclosure standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern over the period to 30 April
2024.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit 32 Valuation of Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss -
matters Commodity Transactions
32 Valuation of Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss — Commodity Securities
Materiality [(i Overall materiality of US$55.50m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit scope for the company. This enables us to form
an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the company and effectiveness of controls, changes in the business
environment and the potential impact of climate change when assessing the level of work to
be performed. All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Changes from the prior year There were no scoping changes compared to the prior year.

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how climate change will impact
companies. The company has determined that there are no directly observed impacts of
climate change on the business due to the nature of the company and its operations. This
is explained on page 6 in the corporate social responsibility section, which form part of
the““Other information,””rather than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on
these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.
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Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on evaluating management®s
assessment of the impact of climate risk, physical and transition, the adequacy of the
company”s disclosures in the financial statements as set out in note 2 and conclusion that
there was no further impact of climate change to be taken into account as the material
assets and liabilities are valued based on market pricing as required by IFRS.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Assets at fair value through
profit and loss — Commodity
Contracts

USD 5,526,745,526
(2021: USD 5,026,725,552)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 26-27); and
Note 7 of the Financial
Statements (pages 30-31)

Risk that Commodity Contract
values are misstated or that
valuations are incorrectly
calculated.

The Commodity Contracts held
comprise a range of
commodity derivatives that
are used by the Company to
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure
that is designed to track
the price of commodity
futures.

The Commodity Contracts are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Asset.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied (including the risk
that the valuation
methodology has not been
determined in accordance
with the terms of the
applicable prospectus) and
in the source and timing of
valuation inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Contracts represents in
excess of 99% of the
company®s total assets as at
31 December 2022 (2021: 99%)
and therefore any error in
valuation approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Contracts.

An assessment of the design
of the company®"s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Contract valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

We obtained independent
confirmation, from the
contract counterparty, of
the contractual value of
contracts as at the
reporting date.

Agreement of the valuation
methodology applied to the
definition set out in the
prospectus and validation of
key inputs used to derive
the value of the Commodity
Contracts. This included
agreement of the price of
referenced commodities or
commodity indices to
external pricing sources as
at 31 December 2022.

Recalculation of the value
of a sample of Commodity
Contracts held at 31
December 2022, representing
94% of the total value of
Commodity Contracts held.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Contracts that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of the Commodity Contracts

is not materially misstated.
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss -
Commodity Securities

usD 5,455,860,617
(2021: USD 5,020,433,919)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 26-27); and
Note 8 of the Financial
Statements (pages 31-32)

Risk that values of
securities in issue are
misstated or that valuations
are incorrectly captured.

The Commodity Securities in
issue comprise a range of
financial instruments that
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure to
movements in prices of
Commodity without needing to
take physical delivery.

The Commodity Securities are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Liability.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied and, in the source,
and timing of valuation
inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Securities represents in
excess of 99% of the
company”s total liabilities
as at 31 December 2022
(2021: 99%) and therefore
any error in valuation
approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Securities.

An assessment of the design
of the company®"s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Securities valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

Assessed the appropriateness
of the valuation methodology
applied, comprising the use
of traded security prices to
value the Commodity
Securities, against relevant
IFRS requirements.

Independently obtained
security prices using
external pricing sources at
the balance sheet date.

Recalculated the value of
Commodity Securities held at
31 December 2022, by
multiplying the security
price by the confirmed
security balance in issue.
This represented 100% of the
total value of Commodity
Securities in issue.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Securities that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of Commodity Securities is
not materially misstated.

218/222



EDINETOOOO
000000000000000000000000000000(E23770)
oooooooooooooog
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the company to be US$55.50 million (2021: US$50.70 million),
which is 1% (2021: 1%) of Total Assets. We believe that Total Assets provides us with an
appropriate basis for audit materiality as Total Assets reflects the relevant exposure of
holders of issued securities to the underlying asset base.

There has been no change in the basis of materiality used compared to the prior year.
Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an
amount to reduce to an appropriately Ilow Ievel the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the company®s
overall control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 50% (2021:
75%) of our materiality, namely US$27.75m (2021: US$38.03m). We have set performance
materiality at this percentage in response to a number of errors in the financial
statement close process. We had set performance materiality at 75% of our planning
materiality in the prior year based on our prior experience of not identifying errors or
significant audit differences.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of US$2.78m (2021: US$2.54m), which is set at 5% of materiality, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of
materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in
forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on
pages 1 to 12, other than the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

22 proper accounting records have not been kept by the company, or proper returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

32 the financial statements are not in agreement with the company"s accounting records
and returns; or

52 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® Responsibilities set out on page
12, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
both those charged with governance of the company and management.

32 We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the company and determined that the most significant are those that
relate to the reporting framework, comprising IFRS and the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and
regulations that may have an effect on the presentation and disclosure of the
financial statements being the applicable Listing Rules of the Central Bank of
Ireland (Investment Market Conduct) and UK Listing Authority Rules;

32 We understood how WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited is complying with those
frameworks by making enquiries of the directors and key management of the
administrative service provider. We corroborated our enquiries through our review
of minutes of Board meetings, papers provided to the board and correspondence
received from regulatory bodies and noted no contradictory evidence;

32 We assessed the susceptibility of the company®s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the investment
objectives of the Company and discussing with management to understand where
reporting was considered susceptible to fraud. Where this risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures in response to the identified fraud risk.
These procedures included testing of transactions to supporting documentation,
testing of specific accounting journal entries and focussed testing, including that
referred to in the key audit matters section above. These procedures were designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud
or error;

32 Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reading board
minutes to identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations, a review of any
associated reporting submitted to the board on compliance with laws and regulations
and enquiries of members of management of the appointed administrative service
provider.

32 As the Company operates in the asset management industry the Audit Partner
assessed the experience of the engagement team and concluded that the team had the
appropriate competence and capabilities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council®s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor®s report.
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Other matters we are required to address

a2 Following the recommendation from those charged with governance, we were appointed by
the company on 3 December 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2019 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and
reappointments is 4 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December
2022.

82 The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC"s Ethical Standard were not provided to
the company and we remain independent of the company in conducting the audit.

82 The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to those charged with
governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with Article
113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company®s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company®s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Christopher David Gordon Barry, FCA
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Jersey, Channel Islands

Date 19 April 2023
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